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- ‘CPAS PLLC -

CERTIF]ED PUBLIC ACCOU:\TA\JTS BUbII\ESS COI\SULTA\ITS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND
'MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

~Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK, as of

and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, Wthh
colIectzvely compnse the City's basic ﬁnanc1al statements as lzsted in the table of contents 2

_ Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

- Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatlon of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
~includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of ﬁnanmal statements that are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. : : : :

'Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we

, plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the ﬁnanCIal statements
are free of material misstatement. : : :

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
. internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. |
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We believe that the audit ev1dence we have obtained is sufﬁment and appropnate to prov1de a._
basis for our audit opmlons :

Opinions _

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Watertown, New York as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes
in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. '

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis on pages 4-18, the supplementary schedule of the funding
progress of the post employment healthcare benefit plan on page 66 and the budgetary comparison
schedule on page 67 to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not prowde
us with sufﬁment evidence to express an oplmon or prov1de any assurance.

Other Inﬁ)rmation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Watertown, New York’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 73 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Prof it Orgamzanons and is not a required part of the basw
ﬁnancxal statements : : : - :




The schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 73 is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
 States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards on page 73 is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. '

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 16, 2014, on our consideration of the City of Watertown, New York’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in consuienng the Cr{y of Watertown New York’s internal control

over ﬁnancnal reportmg and comphance

Watertown, New York
December 16,2014




CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS RN T
June 30, 2014 :

As management of the City of Watertown (the “City™) we offer this overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the City of Watertown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This
“discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial
issues, (b) provide an overview of the financial activity, (c) identify changes in the City’s
financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges), (d) identify any
material deviations from the approved budget, and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns.
Since management’s discussion and analysis is designed to focus on the current year’s activities,
resulting changes, and known facts, readers are encouraged to consider the information presented
here in con;unctlon with the financial statements that foHow o o

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

' The assets of the City of Watertown exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2014 by $91,045,704.
Of this amount unrestricted net position of $2,543 ;560 may be used to meet the government s
-‘ongomg obligations to citizens and creditors. :

» The City’s total net position decreased $3,803,691 in fiscal year 2013-14, with a decrease of
'$4,556,67I in govermnental activities and an increa_se of $752,980 in business-type activities.

. At the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Watertown $ govemmental funds reported
combmed ending fund balances of $16,723,738. S

s (eneral Fund revenues of $40,021,979 on a budgetary basis fell short of budgeted revenues
by $12,627 or 0.03% while budgetary basis expenditures finished $2,924,359 lower than
budgeted expenditures. These results reduced the need to use the full $3,295,578 in.
_appropnated fund balance budgeted for in the 2013-14 General Fund budget. :

s At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was . -

- _$9 106,847 or 22.57% of total General Fund expend1tures

e The City issued $4,485,000 on June 18, 2014 in general obligation bonds with interest rates
ranging from 1.00% to 2.625% to advance refund $4,500,000 of outstanding January 1, 2005
and November 15, 2005 serial bonds with average interest rates of 4.00% to 4.375%. The
January 1, 2005 outstanding bonds were redeemed on July 19, 2014 and the November 15,
2005 outstanding bonds were redeemed on November 15, 2014. A combined difference in

_cash flow requirements of $346,783 and a net present value savmgs of $327 420 were a resuIt
of thls advance refundmg by the Clty .




CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS | ' ' '
June 30 2014 o

- FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - Continued

e The City issued $1,195,000 in serial bonds dated April 10, 2014 maturing April 1, 2024 at

interest rates ranging from 1.50% through 2. 75% (pnced to yleld 2.08%) to prov1de ﬁnancmg :

- for various capital projects.

o The City issued $5,110,000 in serial bonds dated April 10, 2014 maturing April 1, 2029 at
interest rates ranging from 2.00% through 3.25% (priced to yield 2 92%) to provide financing
for the waste water treatment plant’s disinfection facility. S

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management’s discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
(1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the
financial statements. The financial statements’ focus is on both the City as a whole (government-
wide) and on the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund)
allow users to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (inter-period or
intergovernmental) and enhance the City’s accountability.  This report also contains

supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements, which fuzther explains - -

and supports the information presented in these statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The govermment-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City of Watertown’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. All of the
activities of the City, except of a fiduciary nature, are included in these statements. The
government-wide statements provide short term and Iong—term mformatxon about the C1ty s .
financial status as a whole. : : Lo o

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets (including capital
assets) and liabilities (including long-term debt), with the difference between the two reported as
net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
~whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. To assess the overall
health of the City, other indicators, including non-financial indicators like the City’s property tax
base, bond ratings, the condmon of its infrastructure, and the County ] saies tax base, shouId also
be conSIdered : S : ;-




- : CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ' B e '
June 30 2014

_ Government~_Wi_de Financial Statements - Continued

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. Since full accrual accounting is used for the government-wide
statements, all changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g. uncollected taxes and interest payments on debt). This statement also focuses on
both the gross and net costs of the various functions of the City, based only on direct functional

revenues and expenses. This is designed to show the extent to which the various functlons are -

self-supporting and/or dependent on general taxes and other revenues for support.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Watertown
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities include most of the
City’s basic services such as the City’s fire and police services, public works, parks and
recreation, the bus system, library and general government support. Sales tax, property taxes,
and State Aid finance most of these services. The business-type activities of the C1ty mclude the
water and sewer utilities. User fees support these activities. :

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Watertown itself (known
as the primary government), but also the Watertown Empire Zone as a blended component unit
as it is not a legally separate entity and the Roswell P. Flower Memorla} L1brary Board of
Trustees as a discretely presented component u.mt - - .

Fund Finan_cial Statements

~ The fund financial statements are designed to report information about groupings of related
accounts, which are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. These statements provide more detailed information about the
City’s most significant funds (major funds) and not the City as a whole. All of the funds of the
City can be divided into three categones (1) govemmental funds, @ propnetary funds and (3)
ﬁducxary funds. .




' CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
e ]

- MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
"June 30 2014

Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Govem_rnentai Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
- governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-
" term sources and uses of available resources. These funds are reported using the modified
accrual method of accountlng that measures cash and ail other ﬁnanmal assets that can be readlly o
converted to cash. : : : o

The govemmental funds statements provide a more detailed short-term view that helps determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
the City’s programs. Because the focus (current financial resources) of governmental funds is
narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements (total economic resources), it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so,
readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance provide a reconciliation to fac111tate this companson

between governmental funds and governmental actmtles : :

The City of Watertown maintains numerous individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the General, Capital Projects and
Community Development Funds, which are considered to be the City’s major governmental funds.
Data for the other governmental funds is combined into a single, aggregated presentation. '

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds. To demonstrate

compliance with the budget, a Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund has been

provided as Required Supplemental Information following the Basic Financial Statements.

| Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers
(both external and internal). These funds use accrual accounting, which is the same method used
by the private sector. The City of Watertown has two proprietary or enterprise funds. The City’s
proprietary funds are the Water and Sewer Funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as shown in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the enterprlse funds

both of which are con31dered to be major funds of the Cxty




- : CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
e e
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4 ' ST
June 30, 2014 o

Fund Financial Statements - Continued -

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. While these funds represent trust responsibilities of the City, these assets are
restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the City. Therefore, these assets
are not reflected in the govemment-wide fmanmal statements. These funds are reported usmg the
accrual acoountmg method.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide add1t10nal information that is essential to a full understandmg of the data_
provided in the government—w;de and fund financial statements. -

Other Information

Following the basic financial statements is additional required supplementary information that
further explains and supports the information in the financial statements This sectlon 1ncludes
the budgetary companson schedule for the General F und : S

Government-wide Financial Analysm )

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. At June 30, 2014, the City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $91,045,704
compared to $94,849,395 at June 30, 2013. By far the largest portion of the City’s net position
(93.20%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, building, equipment, improvements,
construction in progress and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still outstanding. Capital assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in capital assets are
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources, since the cap1ta1 assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities, :

An additional $3,649,718 or 4.01% of the net position represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. Currently, the amount of restricted net position
represents the net position of the Watertown Empire Zone, Alex T. Duffy Fairgrounds Stadium
Repair Reserve Fund, Capital Reserve Fund, Tourism Fund, Community Development Fund,
Capital Projects Fund, Workers Compensation Fund, Insurance Liability Fund and Debt Service
Fund. The unrestricted net position, $2,543,560 compared to $5,806,695 last year, may be used L
to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. : -




June 30 2014

Governmental Activities

~ CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business-type Activities

Total Net Position

6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/13

Current and other assets $24,272742 | $23,367,213 $9,326,473 $6,116,422 $33,569,215 $29,483,635
- Capital Assets 69,656,171 71,413,449 38,476,819 34,878,644 108,132,990 106,292,093

Total Assets $93,928.913 | $94,780.662 { $47.803,292 | $40.995066 | $141.732.205 | $135.775.728

Deferred Qutflows i 17,958 = = = 117,958 =

Long-term liabilities $25,150,855 | $22,828,710 | $12,774,133 $8,134,162 $37,924,988 $30,962,872

outstanding

Other liabilities 9,853,967 - 8,353,232 3.025,504 1.610,229 12.879.471 9,963,461

Total liabilities $35.004.822 1 $31.181.942 | $15,799.637 $9.744 391 LSO_,}_?O4.459 $40,926.333

Net Position:

Invested in Capital Assets, $55,321,873 | $55824,359 | $29,530,552 | $28,540,583 $84.,852,425 $84,364,942

net of related debt ) : :

Restricted 3,635,806 4,514,880 13,913 162,878 3,649,719 4,677,758

Unrestricted 84,370 3.259.481 2.459.,190 2.547.214 2.543.560 5.806.695

$59.042.049 | $63,598,720 | $32.003,655 | $31.250.675 $91.045,704 $94,849.395 |

As of June 30, 2014, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
position, both for the government as a whole as well as for its separate categorles— govennnental o
and busmess—type activities. ' : _ :




CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS : ' : '

_ June 30 2014

The followmg table provzdes a summary of the Clty s operatlons for the year ended June 30

2014.
Gov eSS Total
Revenues: 6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/13
Program Revenues: '
Charges for services $8,056,136 $7,203,333 | $10,194,269 | $10,107,067 | $18,250,405 | $17,310,400
Operating grants and contributions 2,078,421 863,653 - - 2,078,421 863,653
Capital grants and contributions 887,561 629,919 617,105 164,190 1,504,666 794,109
General revenues: ' '
Property taxes 7,917,421 7,733,866 - - 7,917,421 7,733,866
Sales tax 17,017,000 17,247 801 - - 17,017,000 17,247,801
Utilities gross receipts tax 350,345 329,528 - - 350,345 329,528
Franchise fax 388,550 412,138 - - 388,550 412,138
Mortgage tax 363,701 480,981 - - 363,701 480,981
Hotel occupancy tax 241,395 250,684 - - 241,395 250,684
Grants and Entitlements not 4,703,208 7,803,208 - - 4,703,208 7,803,208
restricted to specific programs
Investment earnings 106,337 18,568 50,323 2,502 156,660 21.070
Total revenues 42,110,075 | $42.973.679 ! $10.861,697 | $10.273.759 | $52.971.772 | $53,247.438
Expenses: '
General government support $13926,627 | $14,032,867 . - | $13,926,627 | $14,032,867
Hydroelectric production 634,045 631,684 - - 634,045 631,684
Fire ' 8,882,262 8,274,802 - - 8,882,262 8,274,802
Police 7,653,938 7,282,227 - - 7,653,938 7,282,227
Other Public Safety 349,786 565,548 - - 349,786 565,548
Public Works 7,091,270 6,780,642 - - 7,091,270 6,780,642
Bus 910,460 885,209 - - 910,460 885,200
Watertown Empire Zone 4,376 5,681 - - 4,376 5,681
Other Economic Assistance 106,008 116,232 - - 106,008 116,232
Library ' 1,208,378 1,110,602 - - 1,208,378 1,110,602
Other Culture and Recreation 2,006,903 1,977,977 - - 2,006,903 1,977,977
Refuse and Recycling 883,759 936,054 - - 883,759 936,054
Other Home and Community Serv. 2,462,697 342,932 - - 2,462,697 342,932
Interest on Debt Service 576,237 635,822 - - 576,237 635,822
Water ' - - 5,152,941 4,730,740 5,152,941 4,730,740
Sewer - - - 4925776 | 5031682 | 4925776 | 5031682
Total Expenses $46,696,746 | $43,578.279 | 8$10.078.717 |1 $9,762.422 | $56,775.463 | $53.340.701
Excess of Revenues over Expenses (4,586,671} {604,600) 782,980 511,337 | (3.803,691) {93,263)
Transfers 30,000 30,000 {30,000} {30,000) - -
Change in Net Position (4,556,671) (574,600) 752,980 481,337 1 (3,803,691) (93,263)
Net Position - Beginning 63,598,720 64,173,320 31.250,675 | 30,769,338 94,849,395 | 94.942.658
$91.045.704

Net Position - Ending

$59.042.049

$63,598,720

32,003,655

$31,250,675

$94 849.395 _

10




' : CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONAND ANALYSIS SRR L
June 30, 2014

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net position by a total
$4,556,671 compared to last yea.r s decrease of $574, 600 Key elements of the year are as
follows : o IR

o Sales tax revenue totaled $17,017,000 which was a decrease of $230,801 or 1.34%
' over last year’s total of $17,247,801. Sales tax revenue represented 40.41% of the
governmentai activities’ revenue in FY 13/14 compared to 40.14% in FY 12/13.

S . _The base level of New York State Aid to Municipalities (AIM) remamed unchanged
: from the FY 2012-13 level of $4 ,703,208. ' _

e ~ Sale of excess hydro- electnc power totaled $3,906,347 which was an mcrease of
: : $830,243 or 26. 99% over last year’s total of $3,076,104. IR |

‘o The Sewalls’s Island environmental rehabllltatlon costs of $900,545 were expensed in
- FY 13/14 but were prev10usly being reported as constructlon—m—progress

. ,The City received $770,523 in Federal and State Aid for various capital projects

~ which is an increase of $205,636 from the amount received last year for Federal and

. State grants for capital projects. Some of the major projects include the Consolidated

- Local Street and Highway Improvement Program for various streets ($511,817),

. recycling trucks ($92,489), former Ogilivie site environmental rehabilitation
($21,751), and the Factory Street reconstructlon project (§ 144 ,460).

. Grants & Governmental Activities - Revenue by Source
entitlements not e S s
Testricted to : . Charges for - IR
specific programs : © services .
P lll:’/u TS " 19% Operating grants
e R & contributions .
i) .
Franchise and i SO .
other taxes A
2% Capital grants &
T contributions
0,
‘Unilitities gross - P taxes 2%
-Sales taxes Toperty

Teceipts tax

- 1% L 41% S “19%
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

L )
"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS R P AR
June 30 2014 :

. Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $782 980 .
_' compared to $481 337 last year. Key elements for this year are as follows _ i

‘Water operating revenues increased by $180 602 or 3.72% to $5,034,127 whlle SO
; operatmg expenses increased by $412,842 or 8.96% to $5,018,012. .~ L

The City has a contract with the Development Authority of the North Country to

. produce and deliver treated fresh water to Fort Drum as well as other outside water

" -districts connected to the Development Authority of the North Country’s water

- distribution line. In the current fiscal year the revenue derived from this agreement
~was $723,661 or a decrease of $6,542 or 0.90% over last year’s total of $730,203.
Water revenues from this agreement accounted for 14 38% of the total water revenues . °

o compared to 15.04% last year.

 Total revenues from water sales to out31de of the City customers such as the

Development Authority of the North Country and Town of Watertown water districts

“was $1,407,196 or an increase of $75,640 or 5.68% over last year’s total of

-$1,331,556. Water revenues to outside of the City customers represented 27. 95% of
- the water operating revenues compared to 27.43% last year. . =

S_ewer operating revenues decreased by $93,400 or 1.78% to $5,160,142 and

-operating expenses decreased by $129,018 or 2.63% to $4,771,183. Revenues

-~ related to the City’s tanker hauled waste program decreased $135,831 with the
-+ leachate revenue from the Seneca Meadows landfill decreasing $157,080 due to a

. change in their operations that has significantly reduced the volume of leachate
- delivered to the City’s treatment plant. Transfers to the Sewer Fund capital projects
-decreased by $421,158 to $485,000 as the Sewer Fund continues to be able to afford

o paying more of 1ts capltal prOJects on a pay—as—you~g0 method and av01d the issuance

~of debt. _
The City has a contract with the Development Authority of the North Country to

provide wastewater treatment services to Fort Drum as well as other outside sewer

“districts. In the current fiscal year the revenue derived from this agreement was

- $688,541 or a decrease of $31,748 or 4.41% over last year’s total of $720,289. Sewer

- revenues from this agreement aceounted for 13. 34% of the totaI sewer revenues . :
'_-compared to 13.71% last year. : : : -

Total sewer revenues from outside of the City customers such as the Development

: Authority of the North Country and Town of Watertown districts was $1,658,158 or

" an increase of $35,180 or 2.17% over last year’s total of $1,622,978. Sewer revenues

to outside of the City customers represented 32 13% of the sewer operatmg revenues

: compared to 30 89% last year
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‘Business-type Activities - Operating Revenues and Expenses

$5,500,000

$5,000,000

$4,500,000

o Water  Sewer .
[ BRevenues lExpensesJ o

Fmanclal Analysis of the Government’s Funds

- The focus of the City of Watertown’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing

- the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful

measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. '

At June 30, 2014 the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$16,723,738 representing a decrease of $588,763 or 3.40% in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 54% or $9,106,847 represents the unassigned fund balance which is available for
spending at the City’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is 1) non-spendable to indicate
“that it is not available for new spending because it must be maintained intact for inventories
1($2,362) and prepaid expenditures ($36,865), and 2) restricted to. indicate hmltatlons on its use .
. imposed by grants, debt or leg1slat10n (83,635,806). - .. : : :

General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operatmg fund of the City. At the end of the
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $9,106,847, while the total
General Fund balance equaled $15,908,061 compared to $16,186,135 in the prior year. As a

- measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund
balance and total fund balance to total expenditures and other financing uses. Unassigned fund
balance represents 22.57% of total General Fund expenditures and other financing uses compared
to 20.60% last year, while total fund balance represents 39.42% of that same amount compared

~ to 40.94% last year. B

During the current fiscal year the fund balance of the City’s General Fund decreased by
$330,346 compared to last year’s increase of $2,838,238 due to the receipt of the one—tlme NYS
AIM spm up of $3,100,000 received in FY 2012 13. N _ '
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June 30 2014 '

Capital projects fund. The capital projects fund accounts for the construction and acquisition of
the capital assets of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance was $327,377
compared to $603,480 in the previous year. Within the current year $126,083 is considered
restricted due to debt financing and $201 294 is eonsxdered a851gned due to the fundmg belng
from operatmg fund transfers. : R : _

Proprletary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
 the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. '

Unrestricted net position at the end of the fiscal year of the Water Fund was $1,163,798
compared to $1,134,704 in the prior fiscal year. The water fund had an increase in net position in
the amount of $29,094 compared to an increase of $189,507 in the previous year.

Unresiricted net position at the end of the fiscal year of the Sewer Fund was $1,295,392
compared to $1,412,510 in the prior year. The Sewer Fund had a decrease in net position in the
amount of $117,118 compared to an increase of $291,830 in the prior fiscal year. Other factors
concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussmn of the
City’s busmess -type activities. - -

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund budget was re-adopted once during the fiscal year which resulted in a total
increase in appropriations by $17,700 to provide additional funding to the Library Fund for the
masonry restoration project. Appropriated fund balance was also increased by $17,700 to fund
the transfer. Other budget routine amendments between departmental expenditure accounts also ‘
did occur.

General Fund revenues of $40,021,979 on a budgetary basis fell short of final budgeted revenues of
$40,034,606 by only $12,627 or 0.03% while budgetary basis expenditures of $40,352,325 were
$2,924,359 or 6.76% lower than the final budgeted expenditures of $43,276,684. The shortage of
actual revenues to budgeted revenues is primarily due to the lower than anticipated sales tax
revenue ($1,082,999), and Federal transportation assistance {$201,360) due to the conversion of the
City’s bus system to a Section 5307 program. Revenues that did exceed budgetary expectations
were the sale of hydro-electric power ($459,347), real property tax reserve ($143,437), prescription
rebates ($72,423), and inter-fund transfers ($131,244). Actual expenditures were lower than the
budgeted expenditures due mostly to health insurance premiums ($236,252), health insurance claim
costs ($657,919), personal services and related social security costs ($514,767), compensated
absences ($92,980), workers compensation claims ($61,270), increase in encumbrances ($158,802)
over the previous year, and vehicle and equipment purchases ($353,839) that were delayed due to
under-performing sales tax. These combined results reduced the use of $3,295,578 in appropriated
fund balance that was budgeted in the 2013-14 General Fund original adopted budget to $330,346.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

- The City’s investment in capital assets, net of related debt, for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2014, amounts to $84,852,425. This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings, improvements, Vehlcles machinery and equipment, traffic 81gnals and
other infrastructure.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/13
Land $2,601,285 $2601,2851 % - 3 - $2,601,285 $2,601,285
Construction in Progress 2,301,595 1,936,343 5,190,931 £68,030 7,492,526 2,804,373
Land Improvements 3,416,005 3,681,210 177 1,765 3,416,272 3,682,975
Building and oo 19,553,982 19,456,780 | 11,935,264 12,461,576 31,489,246 31,918,356
Improvements o
{ Infrastructure 38,034,061 39,747,865 18,306,261 18,676,203 56,340,322 58,424,068
'{ Machinery and Equipment 2,141,614 2,290,783 2,747,050 2,557,156 4,888,664 4,847,939
Vehicles 1,607,539 1,699,183 297,136 313914 © 1,904,675} 2,013,097

Total Capital Assets $69.656,171 | $71.413.449 | $38.476.819 | $34,878,644 | $108,132,900 | $106,292.093 |

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following proj ects:

| _ . Compieted the replacement of the Municipal Bu1ld1ng air condmonlng chillers and
‘tower at a cost of $344,604. ' _

1 . Completed the Thompson Park Zoo pavilion at a cost of $258,266.

| ~ e Completed replacement of the Thompson Park pav1hon and restroom roofs at a cost
- 0f $268,199. :

e Acquired a dredger and constructed a pole barmn and launching system to be able to
- dredge the City’s coagulation basin with City staff rather than contmue to. hlre an
- mdependent contractor at a cost of $295,152. ' :

* Continued design of the Factory Street reconstruction project which is estimated to
. ““cost approximately over $13,920,000 and include the reconstruction of 2,600 linear
. feet of street as well as the replacement of the sidewalks, curbs, water main and -
‘sanitary sewer. Construction in progress at year-end was $1,495,733. '

o Continued the construction of a disinfection system for both treatment outfalls at the
“wastewater treatment plant. The system is mandated in the renewed State Pollutant
" Discharge Elimination System (SPDES) permit provided by the New York State
 Department of Environmental Conservation. The estimated cost of the prOJect is
_ $6 100 000 Construction in progress at ﬁscal year—end was $4 008 941.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration - Continued

. -»  Began design of the Arena rehabilitation project which is estimated to cost over
0 .$6,900,000 and include the roof repair, floor replacement, fire suppression system
- upgrade, locker and restroom renovations and vestibule and office expansmns
- Construction in progress at year-end was $172 146.. ' :

- Additional information on the Clty s cap1tal assets can be found in the Notes to the F 1nanc1al
‘Statements. : : o

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding
of $26,020,000. This entire amount is backed by the full faith and credlt of the City of
Watertown. Following is a comparative statement of outstanding debt:

6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/13 6/30/14 6/30/13

| General obligation bonds | $14.452.258 | $15.722,706 | $11.567.742 $7.052.294 | $26.020,000 | $22.775.000

The New York State Constitution restricts the City’s level of indebtedness to an amount no
. greater than 7% of the average full valuation of taxable real property for the most recent five
years. Water debt, sewer debt, self-sustaining debt and refunded debt are excluded from the debt

14,452,258 | $15,722,706 | $11.567,742 | $7,052,294 | $26,020.000 | $22,775,000

limit calculation. Accordingly, as of June 30, 2014, the City’s debt limit was $77,009,370 with -

total net indebtedness of $16,627,332 thus exhausting 12.20% of the City’s debt limit.

The City issued $4,485,000 on June 18, 2014 in general obligation bonds with interest rates
ranging from 1.00% to 2.625% to advance refund $4,500,000 of outstanding January 1, 2005 and
November 15, 2005 serial bonds with average interest rates of 4.00% to 4.375%. The January 1,
2005 outstanding bonds were redeemed on July 19, 2014 and the November 15, 2005
outstanding bonds were redeemed on November 15, 2014. A combined difference in cash flow
requirements of $346,783 and a net present value savmgs of $327 420 were a resuIt of thlS
advance refunding by the City. ‘ o

The City issued $1,195,000 in serial bonds dated April 10, 2014 maturing April 1, 2024 at
interest rates ranging from 1. 50% through 2.75% (prlced to yield 2.08%) to pr0v1de financing for
-various capital projects.

The City issued $5,110,000 in serial bonds dated April 10, 2014 maturing April ‘1, 2029 at
interest rates ranging from 2.00% through 3.25% (priced to yield 2.92%) to prov1de ﬁnancmg for
the waste water treatment plant’s disinfection facility.

Additional information on the C1ty s capltal debt can be found in the Notes to the F1nanc1al _
Statements. _ : :
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates‘ ,

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when adoptlng the ﬁscai year
2014- 15 budget, most importantly the state and local economy. :

The City of Watertown is the county seat of Jefferson County. The unemployment rates in June
2014 were 7.1% for the City of Watertown, 7.1% for Jefferson County, 6.5% for New York State

and 6.1% for the United States. The unemployment rates in June 2013 were 9.1% for the City of
Watertown, 9.1% for Jefferson County, 7.8% for New York State and 7.8% for the United States.

Budget factors considered during the preparation of the FY 2014-15 budget included the national
and state economies, low interest rates, high unemployment and high NYS Retirement System
contribution rates. With the continued uncertainties overseas, as has been the case for the past
ten vears, it was difficult to predict how many of the 18,060 soldiers of the 10™ Mountain
Division at Fort Drum would be deployed and for how long they would be gone fighting the War
on Terrorism.

The City decreased its’ estimate for sales tax revenue, the largest General Fund revenue source,
by $610,000 or 3.37% due to uncertainties with the Federal Budget and 1ts affect on Fort Drum_
as well asa decreasmgly favorable exchange for Canadlan shoppers. .

Like most local governments, the City’s 2014-15 budget continued to be impacted by the high
costs for retirement benefits although FY 2014-15 was the first year since FY 2009-10 that the
retirement rates decreased. The contribution to the Employees® Retirement System will range
from 11.0% to 25.1% of salaries, down from a range of 11.5% to 28.8% in the previous year. The
contribution rate for the Police and Fire Retirement System will range from 15.4% to 27.3% of
salaries, down from 16,0% to 28.4% of salaries in the previous year. Due to the dramatic drop in
the stock market from April 2008 to April 2009 the State Pension Fund lost approximately 40%
of its value. Due to the NYS Retirement System’s smoothing techniques the retirement rates are
now starting to decline after years of increases to keep the pension fund adequately funded.

Due to the better than expected claims history over the last few years the self-insurance fund
appropriated $291,000 of fund balance to keep the premium rate at the FY 2013-14 levels. '

The City saw an increase of $5,324,312 or 0.52% in taxable assessed value. The residential tax
burden has increased slightly to 60.69% from 60.64% last year. The average assessment for a
single-family bome in Watertown increased slightly to $107,061 from $106,786 in FY 2013-14.
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Eeonomi_e Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates - Continued

The City’s FY 2014-15 General Fund operating costs decreased by $1,299,644 or 3.17% to
$39,721,991 as there were less financial resources available due to the reduced estimate for sales
. tax revenue and the reduction in available fund balance to appropriate. The City appropriated
$600,000 of fund balance, a decrease of $964,310 over FY 2013-14. The sales tax revenue
budget was decreased to $17,490,000 which represented a decrease of $610,000 or 3.37% below
the sales tax budget for FY 2013-14. The State Aid revenue budget remained at the City’s base
amount of $4,703,208. The increase in the real property tax levy of $781,896 or 10.40% and the
increase in taxable assessed values resulted in a 9.28% increase to the property tax rate. The City
‘had to adopt legislation to approve a budget over the limits of the New York State Property tax
cap that essentially limits the growth in the real property tax levy to two percent or the rate of
1nﬂat10n whichever i is less, With some exceptions. ' _ B

Approprratrons for the Water Fund increased by $60,300 or 1.22%. The Water Fund did not
appropriate any fund balance. The Sewer Fund appropriations increased $85,201 or 1.55%. The
Sewer Fund appropriated $51,652 of fund balance of which $11,578 was from the debt reserve
fund to pay for the Algonquin Street sa.mtary sewer reconstructlon debt service. The water and
sewer rates were not modified. ' : SR N

Requests for Information

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Watertown’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be
addressed to the City Comptroller, City of Watertown, Mumcnpal Burldmg, 245 Washington
Street Watertown, New York 13601 : .
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2014
Primary Government Component Unit
: The Trustees of the
Governmental Business-Type Roswell P, Flower
Activities . Activities Total Memorial Library
ASSETS o L
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents ) $ 15,082,117 g 3,658,934 $ 18,741,105 $ T 122,805
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents . 3,111,598 - 3,584934 6,696,532 - 159,305
Investments S : - et o . 57,168
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles) ' o o -
Accounts s 2,489,395 1,351,454 3,840,853 L.
Taxes . 110,968 N 116,968 L.
Due from Other Governments o f } 1,831,443 166,846 1,998,289 C .
State and Federal Aid Receivables S o 1,617,714 . 554379 2,172,153 : S
Inventory ' RS ' T 2,362 - © 2,362 -
Prepaid Expenses ) . . 36,865 - 36,865 2,021
Internal Balances R ' o (9,838) 9,626 88 -
B o 242792742 9,326,473 33.599.215 341,299
. Capital Assets ; . LT : 4 :
Non-Depreciable Lo 4,902,880 5,190,931 © 10,093,811 14,516
Depreciable, Net e . 64,753,291 33,285,888 98,039,179 66,599
 Total Capital Assets : ' ' 69,656,171 18,476,819 108,132,990 81,115
TOTAL ASSETS ) 93,928 913 47,803,292 141,732.205 422,414
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES ) B B
Deferred Amount on Advance Refundings 117,958 - 117,958 -
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES | 117.958 - 117,958 -
LIABILITIES - SR ' B
Accounts Payable Co. _ R 1,695,664 $ 1,147,463 % 2,843,127 $ 1,712
Accrued Interest Payable - - Co o - 104,881 81,888 186,769 r -
Accrued Liabilities ' ) . 2,455,513 166,613 2,622,126 -
Retainage Payable . - 43,734 182,307 226,041 - -
Current Debt Obligations Due Within One Year ) . 2,200,082 1,212,918 3,413,000 S
Compensated Absences . R 613,932 109,283 723215 Lo e
Workers Compensation Liability v o 978,874 289,879 1,268,753 IR
. Other Liabilities o : - 8,663 12,234 20,897 Yo e
Due to Other Governments ST T 51607 850 52,457 Co.
Due to Retirement System . : T 906,393 111,948 : 1,018,341 : -
Uneamed Revenue . - 51,773,498 ’ - 1,173,498 -
Accrued Post Employment Benefits - 11,532,130 2,129,430 13,661,560 .
Other Long-Term Debt ) ’ - 335,675 - 339,675 -
Serial Bonds Due and Payable After One Yea: . o 12,300,176 10,354,824 22,655,000 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES : Lo ] 35.004.822 15,799,637 50,804,45% 1,712
NET POSITION S . S ' o ) . ’
Net Investment in Capital Assets o e 55,321,873 ©29,530,552 - . 84,852,425 . -
Restricted for ' o : s :
Capital Reserves S 2,057,842 - . 2,057,842 -
Workers Compensation Reserve S . 317,490 . 317,490 -
Insurance Reserve - General S 399431 C : 399431 e
Tourism Reserve ST 723 - BRNRE. 7 XX
Econemic Development and Assisiance o 231,434 e $231,434 _ e
Community Development . . e .. 136,784 L. 136,784 B
Capital Projects : S : 126,083 S 126,083 _ .
Debt Service : ' L 314019 13,913 327,932 : -
Library L S - - - 184,305
Unrrestricted . Ce 84 370 2,459,190 2,543,560 : 236,397
TOTAL NET POSITION 3.....59042049 3 32003655 5 91045704,  § .. .. 420702

See notes to audited basic financial statements.
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W%

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

-Year Ended June 30, 2014
Net (Expense) Revenne and’ Component
ngr:m Revenues . Chanﬁes in Net Position Unit
Operating Capital Business- The Trustees of the
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type . Roswell P. Flower
- : —Expenses Services Contributions _ | Lontribytions Activities Activitles Total . Memorialbibrary
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental Activities
General Governeent Support
Generat Governmerit Support ’ $ 13,926,627 § 2 477,738 1 119,296 $ 8,574 $ {11,321,0{9) 5 - 3 O{HL321019) g -
Hydroelectzic Production ; C 634,045 3,506,347 - - 3272302 . - 3,272,302 -
Public Safety L ) ’ .
Fire . : 8,882,262 . - E - X - (8,882,262) - (8,882,262) -
Police R . ’ 7,653,938 112,587 194,792 - . {T.346,559) . - (7,346,55%) -
Other Pubitic Safety T 349,786 © o 100,787 . - - C {248,999} . (248,999) ) .
Public Works 7,091,270 ' 121474 . . 5,349 763,797 C T (6,200,650} ) - (6,200,650 ) .
Transportation . . o : ! Lo -
Bus : . T 810,460 CIT5ARS R TEATS ’ 830 (486,984) ' - | (486,984) L .
“Economic Opportunity and Development i : ’ i o o .
Other Economic Assistance . " 106,008 : . - . - R - (106,008) TR .- {106.008) o . .
Empire Zone . Tl 4376 o - : - - - C (4,376) P (4,376) - s e
Culture znd Recreation . S ' - i : . Lo o . - ’
Litary . ) 1,208,378 © 21116 - 46,105 S 120 {1,141,037) L. (1,141,037 S
Other Culture and Recreation ’ C 2,006,903 315877 - . - C(1,691,026) - Y €1,69:,026) o o
“Home and Commmumity Services ' B - 3 : . : L ) )
Refuse and Recycle . 883,759 . 23,700 R - T 92,480 . 32,430 . - . 32,430 . Co-
Other Home and Community Services 2462697 - 1,025 © - 1465718 R 21,751 {974,203) . : (974,203 ' . -
Tnterest on Debt 576237 - ) - - 3 . (576237) - (576237} .
" Total Governmental Activities 46.696.746 §.056.136 2,078,421 R87.561 (35,674,628} - {35.674,628) -
Business-Type Activities
Water o 5,152,941 5,034,127 - 48,655 . {70,159) (70,159) -
Sewer ST 4,925,776 5,160,142 - 568,450 - 202,816 202,816 -
Total Business-Type Activities 10,078,717 10.194.269 - 617,103 - 732,657 732,657 -
‘Totat Primary Government ORI . S R |21 K. A E— 1 1 X 1 R N— .1 X (35,674,628) 732,657 (34,941,971) -
" . Component Unit
The Trustees of the B.P. Flower Memorial Library - 3 77,127 b3 - 3 59.394 3 - - - - {17,733}
Total Cempenent Unit ’ 3 A v e e — 30354 % - - - - (17,733}
Net {Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position Brought Forward {35,674,628) 712,657 (34,941,971} (17.733}
GENERAL REVENUES
Property Taxes 7,917,421 - 7,917,421 -
Sales Taxes 17,017,600 - 17,017,000 -
Utifities Gross Receipts Tax 350,345 - 356,348 -
Tranchise Tax 388,550 - 388,550 -
Hotel Oceupancy Tax 241,395 - 241,395 X -
Mortgage Tax . . 163,701 - 363,70t -
Grants and Entitlements Not Restricted ’ .
to Specific Programs 4,703,208 __— 4,703,208 .
Tnvestment Earnings 106,337 - 50,323 156,660 8 O
] Total General Revenues 31,087,957 50,323 31,138.280 710
Teansfers o 30,000 (30,000) - -
_ Change in Net Position {4,556.671) 752,980 (3,803,691) (17,023}
Total Net Position - Beginning of Year ) 63,598,720 33,250,675 94 849 395 437,725
- Total Net Position - End of Year AR 59042049 § 32001655 % 91045704 420702

See notes to audited basic financial statements.
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June 30, 20 1 4
Non “Total
. ' Capital Community Major Governmental
Geueral Projects Development Funds Funds
ASSETS '
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 14,820,808 $ CL 3 E- 3 261,363 5 15,082,171
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents © 2,005,428 804,069 183,119 ' 28,982 3,111,598
Receivables (Net of Allowance for Uncoliecubles) . : ’ S .
Accounts 083,853 - 1,504,047 © 1,499 2,489,399
Taxes 110,968 - - - © 110,968
Due from Other Governments 1,826,859 - 4584 - " 1,831,443
State and Federal Afd Receivables 80,842 509,073 1,027,859 - - 1,617,174
Inventory ' 2,362 - Ca - 2,362
Prepaid Expenses 36,865 - - - 36,865
" Due from Other Funds 335,090 - - 150,650 485,740
TOTAL ASSETS 3 20,293 075 3 1,313,142 3 2,719,609 $ 442,494 3 24,768,320
LIABILITIES ' :
Accounts Payable 5 1,113,677 § 550,385 - 19,638 b 11,964 5 1,695,664
Accrued Liabilities : 1,410,484 S - 1,009,557 . © 35472 © 2,455,513
Retainage Payable . 43,734 E IR 43,734
Compensated Absences - 59_6,298 - - 17,634 613,932
Other Lisbilities * B,663 - - . 8,663
Due to Other Funds - 160,268 135,000 . L 310 495,578
Due to Other Governments 51,596 . S ] - " 51,607
Due to Retirement System 880,795 - - 25,398 506,393
Uneamed Revenue 163,233 56,646 1,553,619 - 1,773,498
Total Liabilities 4,385,014 085,765 2,582,825 90,578 8,044,582
Nonspendable Lo R o
lnventory 2,362 - - - 2,362
Prepaid Expenses 36,865 - - . '36,865
Restricted for .o ' ) O
Capital Reserve - General 2,037,753 . - . -2,037,753
Capital Reserve - Fairgrounds . 20,089 - - - 20,089
Workers Compensation Reserve 317,490 . . - . 317,490
Insurance Reserve - Geperal - 399,431 - - - 399,431
Tourism Reserve © 52,723 - - - 52,723
Debt Service Reserve | 283,538 - - 30,481 . - 314,619
Community Development Reserve o - 136,784 - - 135,784
Economic Development Reserve - - - 231,434 231,434
Capital Projects : - 126,083 - - 126,083
Assigned to ’ ' o
Self-Funded Health Insurance Plan 12,639,036 - - - 2,639,036
General Government Support 98,214 - - - 98,214
Hydroelectric Production T 376 - - - .. 376
Fire - 50,502 - - - 50,502
Police . 27,155 - - - 27,3155
Gther Public Safety 176,733 - - - 176,733
Public Works 20,548 - - - 29,548
Bus 7,315 - . - . 1,315
Other Culture and Recreation ‘20,343 - - - 20,343
Refuse and Recycle 1,461 - - - 1461
Other Home and Community Services ©280 - - - 280
Library - . - 8,542 8,542
Capital Projects - 201,294 - - 201,294
Sabsequent Year's Expenditures 600,000 - - 81,055 681,059
Unassigned 9,106,847 - - - 9,106,847
Total Fund Balances 15,808,061 327,377 136,784 351,516 16,723,738
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 3 20,293,075 3 1,313,142 3 2,715,609 by 442,494 $ 24,768,320

: CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

See notes to audited basic ﬁnam:lal statements
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
Lo ]
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION '
Year Ended June 30, 2014 P

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES VA PR BT 16,723,738

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported as
assets in governmenta] funds; " :

. The Cost of Capital Assets is R o o 138,115,367

. Accumulated Depreciationis ST R L (68.459,196)
T S R S 69,656,171
Deferred Amount on Advance Refunding of Bonds o R o e SR :117,958

Long-term liabilities, including serial bonds and other
Long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore not reported as liabilities in the
funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

- Bonds Payable S | R s SR o E (14,452,258)

Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable ' L C o (104,881)
Compensated Absences S S (207,679)

" Workers Compensation Liability R o L o o T (978,874)
Landfill Post-Closure Liability ' - . o Lo T (180,000)
Accrued Post-Employment Benefits T (11,532,130)

( SR s SRR e ' (27,455,818)

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES .~ .~ .. = '$ 59042049

.' See notes to audited basic financial statements.




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES
Real Property Taxes
Real Property Tax Items
Nonproperty Taxes
Departmental Income
Intergovernmental Charges
Use of Money and Property
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Sate of Property and Compensation for Loss
Miscellaneous Local Sources ' :
Interfund Revenue
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government Support
Public Safety
Transpoﬁalion
Economic Assistance and Opportunity
Culture and Recreation
Home and Community Services
Employee Benefits
Debt Service

‘Fotal Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)
Serial Bond Proceeds i
Interfund Transfers In
Interfund Transfers Cut
Bond Refiunding Proceeds
Payment to Escrow Agent
Bond Refunding Professional Fees

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Equity Transfer
Fund Balances, End of Year

CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
o ————

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -~

Non

Fotal
Capital Community Major Governmental
General Projects Development Funds Funds

$ 7,601,674 § - 8 -3 - 3 7601674
324,324 - - - 324,324
17,997,291 - - - 17,997,291
5,492,777 - - - 5,492,777
134,596 - - - 154,596
97,923 23,100 3 1,439 122,467
110,098 - - - 110,098
120,182 - - 21,116 141,298
112,972 - - . 112,972

- 8§53.840 84,635 (2,475) 137,358 1,073,358

S 1,100,004 - - - 1,100,004
- 5,431,626 627,117 1,009,557 - 7,068,300
438,328 143,407 451,842 - 1,033,577
39,835,635 878,259 1,458,929 159913 42,332,736
5,063,278 10,790 - - 5,074,068
15,472,862 - - - 15,472,862
4,602,840 1,990,037 - - 6,592,877
106,008 - - 4,376 130,384

.- 1,606,097 1,148,352 - 797,817 3,552,266
- 1,078,704 33,157 1,461,449 : - 2,573,310

- 7,256,834 - - 392,926 7,649,760
2,644,203 - - 62,014 2,706,217
37,830,826 3,182,336 1,461,449 1,257,133 43,731,744
2,004,809 {2,304,077) (2,520) {1,097,220) (1,399,008)

- 870,000 - - 870,000

186,344 1,486,621 - -1,209,205 2,882,170
(2.521,499) A{276,375) - 54,297y (2,852,171)

: - - - . 2,993,574 2,993,574
- - - (3,003,234} (3,003,234)
- - - (80,094) (80,094)
(2,335,155) 2,080,246 - 1,065,154 810,245
. (330,346) (223,831) (2,520) (32,066) (588,763)
16,186,135 603,480 139,304 383,582 17,312,501
52272 (52272) - - -

$ 15908061 _§ 327377 § 136,784 _§ 351,516 $ 16,723,738

‘See notes to audited basic financial statements.

23




CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
e P ——————

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES '

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by Wthh_

the deprecumon expense exceeded the capltal outlays in: the perlod

Capital Outlays
Depreciation Expense

Governmental funds report bond principal as an expenditure, However, in the

$

S (588,763)

2,286,937

Statement of Net Position, the principal payments reduce the hab111ty and do not

result in an expense in the Statement of Activities.

Governmental funds report bond proceeds as a source of funding. However bond

proceeds are not revenues in the Statement of Acuvmes but long-term liabilities

in the Statement of Net Position.
Loss on Disposal of Assets

Bond premiums/discounts and issuance costs associated with long-term bonds are
recognized as expenditures and other financing sources/uses in the governmental
funds at the time the debt issued. However, those items are capitalized on the
Statement of Net Position and amortized over the life of the bonds on the
Statement of Actlvmes smce they do not reqmre the use of cunent fmanmal
Iesources. : i R

Interest expenditures are reported when paid in the governmental funds, however,
the total amount of interest incurred for the period is accrued and recognized in

the government-wide financial statements. The net change in accrued mterest is

recognized as interest expense in the Statement of Activities.

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences
{vacations and sick pay), special early termination benefits (early retirement) and
OPEB costs - are measured by the amounts earned during the current period. In
the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these 1tems are measured by
the amount of current financial resources used.

Long-term portions of accrued claims and judgments, and landfill monitoring
liability are included in the outstanding liability in the Statement of Net Position.
Accordingly, the net change in the long-term portion is reported as a reductxon to
that liability rather than an expense in the Statement of Act:v1t1es .

Change in: Net Position of Governmental Activities

4,006,198 (1,719,261)
2,130,787

(870,000)

(38,015)
(5.998)
14851
© (3,081,396)

(398,876)

$  (4,556,671)

See notes to audited basic financial statements.

24




: CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS T
Year Ended June 30, 2014

- Business - Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Total
ASSETS ' L
CURRENT ASSETS S :
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents ' - -3 2,168,832  § 1,490,102 $ 3,658,934
Accounts Receivable, U S ' T
Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts e o -T3L178 - 620,276 1,351,454
Due from Governmental Funds S 12,403 ' 50,653 ;63,056
Due from Other Governments R - 166,846 : 166,846
State and Federal Aid Receivables S 16,675 537,704 554,379
Total Current Assets SR Lo 2929088 - 2865581 5,794,669
NON-CURRENT ASSETS S ' e
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents o T222,523 3,362,411 3,584,934
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Deprematlon L 18,444,696 © 20,032,123 38,476,819
Total Non-Current Assets - _ . 18.667.219 23,394,534 42,061,753
TOTAL ASSETS L o 21,596,307 ~ 26,260,115 47,856,422
LIABILITIES ' I ' -
CURRENT LIABILITIES . o R - o
Accounts Payable oo $ 421,507 $ 725,956 $  1,147.463
Accrued Interest Payable ' o Lot L 23,656 : 58,232 . 81,888
Retainage Payable ' R S 12,500 .- 169,807 182,307
Accrued Liabilities " Sl s 89,667 - 76,946 166,613
Compensated Absences e : S 60,945 .- 48,338 109,283
Due to Retirement System LT 59975 51,973 111,948
Due to Governmental Funds oo e AT 126 6,004 . 0 053130
Due to Other Governments : S S T 850 S : : 850
Other Liabilities o S 12,234 12,234
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities R 488,034 724 884 1,212,918
- Total Current Liabilities , ST 1,216,494 1,862,140 3,078,634
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES , e R o
Workers Compensation Liability ST 158,040 130,839 289,879
Other Post Employment Benefits Liability R 1,319,088 810,342 2,129,430
Serial Bonds Payable S o 3,242.937 7,111,887 10,354,824
~ Total Long-Term Liabilities L L 4721065 8,053,068 12,774,133
Total Liabilities : I ' _ N 5.937.559 9,915,208 15,852,767
NET POSITION o s ' '
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt . L 14,494,950 15,035,602 29,530,552
Restricted for Debt : SR T 13,913 13,913
Unrestricted ' B 1,163,798 1,295,392 2.459.190

“TOTALNETPOSITION ~ ~© ' § 15658748  _§ 16344907  _§ 32,003,655

. See notes to audited basic financial statements.
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' CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
ettt TN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -
PROPRIETARY FUNDS ' '

Year Ended June 30, 2014
Business - Type Activities
" Enterprise funds
Water ___Sewer - Total
OPERATING REVENUES T : B '
Charges for Services o % 3,604,096 $ 3,491,850 $ 7,095,946
Intergpovernmental Charges : S 01,407,196 1,658,158 3,065,354
Other Operating Revenue o SR 22 835 10,134 32,969
Total Operating Revenues s . oo 5,034,127 5,160,142 - 16,194,269
OPERATING EXPENSES o - | |
Salaries, Wages and Employee I Beneﬁts LT 2,514,760 2,019,818 ‘4,534,578
Contractual Services ' L 1,783,256 2,159,379 3,942,635
Depreciation ' o] . 716,391 591,986 1,308,377
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Asset o 3,605 0 3,605
Total Operating Expenses : L 5.018.012 4,771,183 9.789.195
Income from Operations : B ' ' 16,115 : 388,959 E 405,074
NON-OPERATING REVEN[JES (EXPENSES) o | S '
Interest Revenue o : e 22617 27,706 " 50,323
Interest Expense : (134,929 {154,593) (289,522)
'_l"otal Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses) L (112.312) (126,887) ‘ (239.199)
Income Before Contributions and Transfers R B _ -'(96,197) 262,072 165,875
Capital Contributions : o o : 48,655 568,450 617,105
Transfers Out K - - (15,000) {15,000) (30,000)
Change in Net Position L (62,582) 815,522 " 752,980
Net Position, Beginning of Year ‘ S 15,721,290 15,529,385 31,250,675
Net Position, End of Year _ o - C .8 15658748 $ 16344907 $ 32,003,655

.- See notes to audited basic financial statements
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
M
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS ' S B :
Year Ended June 30 2014 I

- Business - Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities : : C o
. Cash Received from Providing Services % .. 5,081,138 b 4,682,906 3 9,764,044
Cash Payments for Contractual Expense ) . {1,871,698) '(2,248,061) T (4,119,759)
--Cash Payments for Personal Services and Benefits ) C(2,130,261) (1,917,394) (4,047,655)
Qther Operating Revenue : 22,835 10,134 32,969
" Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities ‘ 1,102,014 ) 527,585 1,629,599
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities T T S
Transfers to Other Funds ' - (15,000} B (15,000) (30,600)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Actmtles_ S PR e ' - C
Proceeds of Capital Debt - S 326,459 5,103,202 5,429 661
Premiurn Received on Bond Refunding : oo T 721,822 26,243 - 48,065
Principal Paid on Capital Debt T i (465,558) _ - (448,654) -{914,212)
Interest Patd on Capital Debt ' e - -{138,853) o (127,166) (266,019)
Capital Grants o ' 57,822 568,450 626,272
~* Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Capital S ‘ . '
and Related Financing Activities R B (198,308} 5,122,075 4,923,767
Cash Flows from Investing Actlvmcs P : e o ‘ '
Purchase of Capital Assets _ S LT (496,847) (3,357,807) (3,854,654}
Interest Income : 795 1,462 2,257
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities o ! (496,052) (3,356,345) (3,852,397)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents . ‘ 392,654 - 27278315 2,670,969
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year - .8 1,998,701 $ 2,574,198 b 4,572,899
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year ) 5 2,391,355 $ 4,852 513 3 7,_._2.43.868
Reconciliation of Income from Operations to Net o I L . e
Cash Provided By Operating Activities ' C : $ . 16,115 $ 388,959 3 -, 405,074
Depreciation T S 16,391 ©. . 551,986 . . 1,308,377
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Asset : S 3,605 - e ©L T 3,605
Change in Operating Assets o AR SRR ' ’ -
Accounts Receivable o R 4,116 (563 238) (559,122)
"Due from Other Governments I S0 63,984 _ -~ 70,013 oo 133,997
Due from Other Funds : - ' L. 2,476 S 26,000 : 28,476
Change in Operating Liabilities ; T o ; C
Accounts Payable ' S (21324 C(4,599) (25,923)
~ Accrued Liabilities ' I P . 035,310 ©.28,100 ) . 63410
Compensated Absences ' o o o 5911 U (619) T 5,292
Due to Retirement System Co T (3,008) ‘ o (1,909) -.(5,007)
Due to Other Governments . _ : - 515 - . 1515
Other Liabilities ' 0 - 6,153 (109,846) o {(103,693)
OPEB Liability o , 340,224 186,699 526,923
Customer Deposits and Overpayments - R R i) )] - (731)
Due to Other Funds o ' (67,633) (83,961) (151,594)
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 3 1,102,014 5 527,585 $ 1,629,599
Reconcitiation of Total Cash and Cash Equivalents ' s ‘ o
Current Assets - Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - 2,168,832 s 1,490,102 $ 3,658,934
Non-Current Assets - Restricted Cash and Cash Equlvalents - 222,523 3,362,411 3,584,934

Totat Cash and Cash Equwalents oo . & 3 2,391,355 . 8 4,852,513 b 7,243,868

- See notes to audited basic financial statements,




Year Ended June 30, 2014

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due From Other Governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to Governmental Funds
Deposits Held and Due to QOthers
Cafeteria Plan

Other Accrued Liabilities

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Other Purposes

Held in Trust for Scholarships

thal Net Position

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

o CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION o B

B Private

" Purpose  Agency g
Trusts ¥Funds Total
$ 45837 $ 203,807 $ 249,644
' . 32 32
-8 45,837 $ 203,839 $ 249676 .
8 - s 88 $ 88
. - : 164,288 164,288
- . 735,558 35,558
- 3.905 3905
- 203,839 203,839
15,042 - 15,042
29,895 - 29,895
45,837 . 45,837
© § 45837 $ 203,839

3 249.676

28

See notes to audited basic financial statements




CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Year Ended June 30 2014 B :

-Private
Purpose
Trusts

ADDITIONS e R e e T
Interest Revenue B R s 44

Total Additions =~ . . SRR o "

DEDUCTIONS o o S U RS
Scholarships Awarded = . R LT 50

Total Deductions = - SR ; L ' 50

Change in Net Position _ B L L '.:(6)
Net Position, Beginning of Year T DR T ' 45,843

Net Position,End of Year 3§ 4587

- See notes to audited basic financial statements.
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_ . CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
e e —————————

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS
June 30 2014

: NOTE 1- SIGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

_The financial statements of the City of Watertown, New York (the “City”) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
as applied to governmental units. The City's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental

~Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The Governmental Accounting Standards

Board {GASB) is the accepted standard settmg body for estabhshmg govemmental acoountmg and o

.~ financial reporting pnncrples

: _Propr1etary funds apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

- Although the City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its
business-type activities and enterprise funds, the City has not chosen to do so. The more 31g1uﬁcant _
accountlng policies estabhshed in GAAP and used by the Clty are dlscussed below

Fmanclal Reportmg Entlty

The City was 1ncorporated in 1869. The Charter of the City of Watertown, City law and other
general laws of the State of New York, govemn the City. The City Council, which is the governing
body of the City, consists of the Mayor and four Councilpersons. The City Manager serves as Chief
Executive Officer of the City and is appointed by the Council. The City Comptroller serves as the
Chlef Frscal Officer of the City and is appointed by the City Manager. =~

The City provides the following basic services: public safety (police and fire), water and sewer,
_ library, recreation, refuse collection, economlc assistance, street mamtenance Snow removal and
general admrmstratxve services. - - L

The ﬁnanc1a1 reportlng entity cons1sts of

1 The primary government which is the City of Watertown.
2 Organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable.
3 Other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial

. ‘statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth in GASB Statement 14, The
- Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by both GASB Statement 39, Determining Whether

" Certain Organizations are Component Units and GASB Statement 61 7 he Fmanczal _
. Reportmg Enttty Ommbus : : : : . '
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' CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC F INAN CIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014 o

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Contmued

' Fi_na_ncial Repori_:ing Entity - Continued

Based on the forgoing criteria and the significant factors presented beIow the followmg
orgamzatlons are mcluded in the reportmg entlty L - :

Watertown Empire Zone

Portions of the City of Watertown were designated as an Economic Development Zone on
July 27, 1994. The program is designed to atfract new businesses to the area and to enable
existing businesses to expand and create jobs by offering a variety of financial incentives and
economic benefits. The City Council appoints a voting majority of the Program's governing body
‘and significantly influences the activities of the Watertown Empire Zone Program The C1ty
includes the Watertown ‘Empire Zone as a blended component umt : '

The Trustees of Roswell P. Flower Memorial Library

GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, provides additional
guidance to determine whether certain organizations for which the City is not financially
accountable should be reported as component units based on the nature and significance of their
relationship with the City. The decision to include a potential component unit in the City's
reporting entity is based on several criteria including legal standing, fiscal dependency, and
financial accountability. Based on the application of these criteria, the Trustees of the Roswell P.
" Flower Memorial Library is included as a discretely presented component unit. Copies of their
financial statements may be obtained at 229 Washington Street, Watertown, New York 13601.

:Only footnote disclosures relating to the primary government are included in the basic financial
‘statements. The footnote dlsclosures relating to the Trustees of the Rosweli P Flower Memorial
: L1brary are not included. ' : : : ' -

Goyernm_ent—dee_ and Fund Financial Statements

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). Both the government-wide
statements and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or
business-type. The City's police and fire protection, parks, library and recreation, public works,
sports arena, and general administrative services are classified as govemmental actlvmes The
City's water and sewer services are class1ﬁed as busmess~type activities. :
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30 2014 '

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Government-Wide Statements_

The government-wide statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Activities. These statements present summaries of activities for the primary government
(governmental and business-type). The focus of the government-wide statements addresses the
sustainability of the City as an ennty and the change in the Cltys net posmon resultlng from the
current year's activities. -

In the govemment-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a
full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The City's net position is reported in three parts -
investment in capttal assets net of related debt; restncted net posmon and unrestrlcted net
posmon A :

‘The Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost for each of the City's functions or
programs. The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property, sales and
use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of
Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues,
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function
(police, public works, community and youth services, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the
capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. The net costs (by function or business-type
activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property tax sales tax mtergovemmental
revenues, mterest income, etc) : : L
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C CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
NOTES TO AUDITED BASICF INANCIAL STATEMENTS _ e '
. June 30 2014 o

'NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued '

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

‘Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
- statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund
“accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by

segregating transactions related to certain government functrons or act1v1t1es The City records its .

transactlons in the fund types described below

- 1. Governmental Funds

~-The focus of the governmental fund's measurement (in the fund statements) is upon

'j determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and

- balances of financial resources) rather than upon net mcorne The followmg isa descnptlon
o of the governmental funds of the Clty L S :

N General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to

‘account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another

- fund. In addition, risk based act1v1tles a.nd central garage act1v1tres have been recorded in
the General Fund. ‘ - : :

' Specml Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of
~special revenue sources that are legally restricted for spec1f1ed purposes. The City
' ma;mtams the following special revenue funds : .o

":_:‘Commumty Development Fund - to account for the use of Federal monies
received under Community Development Act and any other economic
- -development project. : : '

_' Public Library Fund - to account for the operatlon of the Roswell P Flower
" Memorial Library.

“Debt Service Fund - to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
payment of general long-term debt principal and interest for the mandatory reserve
- fund. The debt service fund also accumulates interest earned on borrowed money.

- Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial
‘resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital expenditures. :
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‘ CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
Tttt e ————————

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014 o '

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Contmued

| Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Fund F_inat_lcial Statement_s - Continued
T2, Proprietary Funds

- The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income,

changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows, The generally accepted

accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the pnvate sector. The
L _followmg is a descnptlon of the propnetary funds of the City: S

Entemnse Funds - used to account for water and sewer operations.

. Water Enterprise Fund - established by law to account for revenues derived

. from charges for water consumption and the application of such revenues toward
~ related operating expenses and revenues derlved from beneﬁtted assessments used
o for debt retirement, ' : :

Sewer Enterprise Fund - established by law to account for revenues derived
- from charges for sewer usage and benefited assessments, and the appllcation of o
' such revenues toward related Operatmg expenses and debt retlrement -

3. Fiduciary Funds

~Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others
~and therefore are not available to support City programs. The reporting focus is on net
‘position and changes in net posmon and is reported usmg accountmg pnnc1ples similarto
. _propnetary funds. : '

The City's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type
(private purpose or agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit

- of a third party (other local governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to
- address activities or obligations of the govemment these funds are not 1ncorporated mto _
the government-W1de statements : : : '
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NOTE 1 -SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

Basis of Accounting / Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures and the related assets and
liabilities are recognized in the accounts and reported in the basic financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus.
Measurement focus is the determination of what is measured, i.e., expenditures or expenses.

- Accrual Basis - The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund
- financial statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and
“.the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets and liabilities,
including capital assets, as well as infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are
included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities
-presents changes in net assets. Under the accrual basis of accountmg> Tevenues are

: recogmzed when earned and expenses are recogmzed when incurred. -

~ 'Modified Accrual Basis - The governmental fund financial statements are prepared using

~ the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under this basis of accounting, revenues are

recorded when measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current

“period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.

- Material revenues that are accrued include real property taxes, state and federal aid, sales

- tax, and certain user charges. Expenditures are recorded when incurred except for prepaid

expenditures and inventory items, which are recognized at the time of purchase; principal

- and interest on indebtedness, which are not recognized as expenditures until due; and
compensated absences, such as vacat10n, whlch Vests or accumulates and 1S charged as.

- expenditures when pald ' L ' '

Property Taxes

Real property tax levies are fully accrued at the beginning of the fiscal year and are received and
accounted for in the general fund. Accruals for "due other funds" are recorded in the general fund
for the portion of the tax revenue allocated to other funds. The current year's property taxes are
levied and the prior year's unpaid water and sewer bills are re-levied on a warrant to collect taxes
due as of July 5 based on the assessed value of real property within the City. The City also levies
and collects property taxes on behalf of Jefferson County, which become due as of January 15,

and enforces collection of unpaid Clty school taxes transmltted by the school dlsmct to the City
in December of each year : : : . e
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

Property Taxes - Continued

Uncollected property taxes assumed by the City as a result of the settlement proceedings are
reported as receivables in the general fund to maintain central control and provide for tax
settlement and enforcement proceedings. The amount owed to the School District for uncollected
school taxes is $7,805 and is included in "Due to other Governments". A portion of the

receivable, $93,152, is considered available and is included in liabilities as deferred revenues. o

An allowance for uncollectible taxes of $768,158 has been included in the General Fund
accounts receivable balance at June 30, 2014. Amounts considered to be uncollectlble are based
on h1stonca1 trends and spemﬁc knowledge related to partlcular parcels. -
“Budget l’ohcne_s
- The budget policies are as follows:
‘1. Prior to April 30 of each year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed
-+ operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operatmg

- 'budget includes proposed expend1tures and the sources of financing.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayers' comments.

3. At the last regular or special meeting in May the budget 18 adopted by the Clty Councﬂ AR

o through the adoptlon of various resolutlons

‘4, City taxes included in the budget are 1ev1ed on July 5. The collection penod is July 5
: .'through AugustS S .

5. The Comptroller is authorized to approve certain budget transfer requests within
- departments or within a fund; however, any revisions that alter total expendttures of any
e _department or fund must be approved by the C1ty Council. T s

6. For year-end financial reporting, adJustments are made to actual results to conform to
' ,modlﬁed budget class1ﬁcat1ons and reﬂect year-end encumbra.nces : ‘
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Contmued

B_ud_get Policies - .Continu_ed

The City prepares a legally adopted annual operating budget for the General Fund. The City’s
~ budget is adopted using a basis of accounting consistent with generally accepted accounting
“principles (GAAP). The City’s actual amounts in the ﬁnanmal statements are presented ona GAAP _
-bas1s therefore no reconcxhatlon is necessary : : : '

E_stimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
.in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported revenue and expenses durmg the reportmg

penod Actual results could differ from those estlmates _ , '

Cash and Cash Eqmvalents

Cash equlvalents are deﬁned as shoxt term mvestments w1th ongmal matuntles of three months or
less. : : .

Receivables

Receivables are stated net of the estimated allowance for uncollectible amounts. Amounts
considered to be uncollectible are based on collection experience. Amounts due from state and
‘federal governments represent amounts owed to the City to reimburse it for expenditures incurred
pursuant to state and federal programs. Other receivables represent amounts owed to the City,
wh1ch mclude sewer rents water rents rehablhtatmn loans, and assessments.
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

Capital_ Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at

historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of

the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the

useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed

~ as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is calculated on the stralght-lme basm over the followmg
estnnated useful 11ves S

* Buildings - : '-.'-"SOyeals

Water and Sewer System ~ 060 - 65 years
. Machinery and Equipment o 5-30years
Building Improvements S '5-25vyears
Land Improvements 7 .20-50 years
Other Infrastructure " 10-50years
~ Compensated Absences

Employees are granted the followmg compensated absences each year:

- chkLeave e o S 12days
" Vacation R L ©10- 30 days

Sick leave may be accumulated from year-to-year, up to 180 days. Upon retirement or other
termination, no payment is made for accumulated sick time except for police, firemen and electrical
workers who may receive a portion of their sick leave at retirement. The liability for sick leave is
recorded in the Statement of Net Position since it is anticipated that none of the liability will be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Vacation time vests and may be
- accumulated. from year-to year up to 10 days for management, civil service employees association
members, police and electrical workers and 5 days for all other employees. The liability will be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources; therefore, it is accounted for in the
respective governmental fund type. The non-current portion (the amount estimated to be used in
subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and represents a

reconcﬂmg item between the fund and government -wide presentatlons R o
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'NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Contlnued :

Insurance and Risk Management

In accordance with New York State guidelines and GASB 10, "dccounting and Financial Reports :
Jfor Rlsk Fmancmg and Related Insurance Issues the City self -insures for the following: -

1 General Liability - The City has a self-insurance program for general hablhty insurance.
. The reserved fund balance is recorded within the General Fund. ST :

2. Workers' Compensation - On May 10, 1920 the City became self-insured for the purposes
~of providing benefits under the Workers Compensation Law of the State of New York.
. The City recognizes workers compensation expenditures when paid. Annual estimates are
appropriated from the General and Enterprise funds, as determined by the City Council.
An estimated liability of $1,268,753 as of June 30, 2014 has been recorded on the
‘Statement of Net Position representmg the long-term 11ab111ty of open workers_
3 __'.'compensatlon cases. P 2 : :

3. Unemployment Insurance - The City has a self-insurance program for unemployment, but
~has not established a reserve for claims. Expenditures are recorded as claims are
.~-submitted. Total unemployment insurance expend1tures for the year ended June 30 2014 ‘
- were $20,891. : L o .

- 4. Health Care Benefits - On July 1, 1992, the City became self-insured for health care
. benefits for all eligible City employees and retirees. A third-party administrator selected
by the City manages this self-insurance plan. A stop loss policy was also purchased to

. protect and insure this plan against major claims in excess of $150,000. The City has
“calculated a monthly premium equivalent based upon historical experience and projected
“costs that are billed to the respective funds on a monthly basis. An estimated liability of

" $514,250 has been recorded in the self-insurance fund for cla:lms 1ncurred as of June 30

2014 but not rcported based upon mstoncal expenence = SRR
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NOTE 1- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Contmued

Fun_d Balance

The City previously implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. GASB Statement
No. 54 is intended to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements prepared by
governmental entities specifically with regard to their reporting of fund balances. The standard
establishes a hierarchy of fund balance classifications based primarily on the extent to which a
government must observe spending constraints imposed upon how resources reported in
governmental funds can be used The City Councﬂ adopted a fund balance pOIle on June 20 _
2011 : :

Fund balance is the excess of assets over liabilities in a governmental fund. There are five
separate components of fund balance, each of which identifies to what extent the City is bound to
honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts can be spent. The five components

1. Nonspendable Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that cannot be spent because
- they are either: (a) not in a spendable form, such as prepaid items, inventories of supplies,
- or loans receivable; or (b) legally or contractually requlred to be maintained intact, such _
. as the principal portion of an endowment : : :

2. Restricted Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that has constraints placed on the
-'use of resources that are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt
.- covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other govemments, or (b)
: 1mposed by Iaw through const1tut10na1 prowsxons or enabling legislation. N

.3. Committed Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that can

. only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal actlon of the L

- City Councﬂ and remain binding unless removed in the same manner,

4. A351gned Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that are
~ - constrained by the government's intent to be used for specific purposes, but that are
‘neither restricted nor committed. Such intent needs to be established exther by the Clty

y Councﬂ or by an official de51gr1ated for that purpose : '

. 5. Unassigned Fund Balance - The portion of a fund balance that 1nc1udes amounts that do
' not fall mto one of the above four categorles : :
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NOTE 1~ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Contmued

Fund Balance - Continued

The City considers restricted fund balances to have been spent first when an expenditure is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available.
Similarly, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the
unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the City considers committed amounts
to be used ﬁrst foIlowed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts. '

The City does not currently have a formal minimum fund balance policy. The City Council shall
approve all commitments by formal action. The action to commit funds must occur prior to fiscal
. year-end to report such commitments in the balance sheet of the respective period, even though
the amount may be determined subsequent to fiscal year-end. A commitment can only be
modlﬁed or removed by the same formal action. : =z :

When it is appropriate for fund balance to be asagned for items such as encumbrance amounts, the

City Council delegates the responsibility to assxgn funds to the Clty Comptro]ler A551gnments may
occur subsequent to fiscal year-end - : , _ _ _

NOTE 2 -CASH AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes govern the City investment policies. In addition, the City has its own written
investment policy. City monies must be deposited in FDIC insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the state. The City Comptroller is authorized to use demand accounts,
certificates of deposits and permissible investments. Permissible investments include obligations of
the U.S. Government and its agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of the State of New
York, obligations issued by any municipality, school district or corporation other than the City of
Watertown and obligations of public authorities, public housing authorities, urban renewal agencies
and industrial development agencies where the State authorizes such investments. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2014, the City lnmted its mvestments to demand and savings accounts and
certlﬁcates of deposit. :

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be
returned to it. While the City does not have a specific policy for custodial credlt nsk Ncw York o

State statutes govern the City's investment policies, as discussed above.

The City does not typically purchase investments and is not exposed to material interest rate risk.
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.NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

The City does not typically purchase investments denommated in forelgn currency and is not
exposed to forexgn currency risk. - o ‘ .

o Collateral is required for demand and savings deposits and certificates of deposit for all deposits not

~ covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations
-of the United States and its agencies, obligations of the State, its municipalities and school dlstncts :
, treasury strips and other obhgatlons as outhned in the City's investment pohcy i

_ Separate bank accounts are not mamtamed for all City funds. Instead, the majority of the cash is
- deposited in pooled checking and savings accounts with acoountmg records mamtamed to show the :
portlon of the balance attributable to each fund. - - :

" For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly llqu1d SR

_ mvestments with an ongmal maturity of three months or less to be cash equlvalents

Dgposit - Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 40 directs that deposits be
disclosed as to custodlal nsk 1f they are not covered by deposxtory insurance, and the depos1ts are
'either C : . . : L

: a) Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by coilateral held
- by the City or by the City's agent in the City's name; or -

b) Collateralized with securities held by the pledgmg ﬁnancml 1nst1tut10ns trust
‘department or agency in the entity's name; or : _

¢) Uncollateralized. (This includes any bank balance that is collateralized with

securities held by the pledging ﬁnanmal mstltutlon its trust department, or agent IR -

- but not m the entity's name. )

Total financial institution (bank) balances at June 30 2014 per the banks were $26 042 089. These \
dep031ts are categonzed as follows _ .

_ ;.”.(a). . '; ®) o C ‘ -' (c)_

$ 786,045 $ . 25256044 $ -
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NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014 '

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

As of June 30, 2014, the City had the following investments:

“Certificates of Deposit-Trust & Agency Funds RN | S8 25939

‘State and Local Government Series Securities -~ - - . 28,886

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summmy of the changes in cap1ta1 assets for the ﬁscal year ended June 30 2014 follows:

_ ."Baiance o ' ~ Balance
. Jume 30,2013 Increases .. Decreases . June3d, _2014
Governmental Activities |

Non—Deprec:1able Capital Assets , ‘ : o
Land $ 2,601,285 b - 3 - $ 2,601,285
ConstructmnmProgreSs o 1,936,343 3,016,914 (2,651,662) 2,301,595
Total . _ 4,537,628 3,016,914 (2,651,662) 4,902,880

" '.D_epreciable Capital Assets - R . B
- Land Improvements ' - 0,564,403 - . - 9,564,403
Buildings and Improvements . 32,152,386 880,344 (110,666) 32,922,064
. Infrastructure . 68,281,265 315,048 S 68,596,313
" Machinery and Equlpmem S 711,623,992 284,751 (113,029) 11,795,714
Vehicles o 10,047,318 441,542 (154,867) 10,333,993
: .Tot_al ; o 131,669,364 1,921,685 (378,562) 133_,212,487
‘Less: Accumulated Depreciation ' | o

Land Improvements ' 5,883,192 - 265,116 ' - 6,148,308
- Buildings and Improvements 12,695,605 747,727 - (75,250) 13,368,082
Infrastructure - 28,533,400 2,028,852 S 30,562,252
Machinery and Equipment 09,333,210 431,320 (110,430) 9,654,100
- Vehicles e CoL 8,348,136 533,183 (154,865) 8,726,454
" Total ' 64,793,543 4,006,198 {340,545) 68,459,196
Depreciable Capital Assets, Not 66,875,821 (2,084,513) (38,017) 64,753,201
Total o $ 71413449 8 932401 S (2,689.679) _$ 69,656,171
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' NOTE 3 ~ CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:.

General Government Support T 8 124,062
- Hydroelectric Productlon - SR TR S 257,357
Police S 92272
Fire ' _' L i S 290,496
Public Works S T o 2,587,659
Bus . o L 86370
Library S S 130,321
Other Culture and Recreation S e 366,179
Refuse and recycling . . - I 71,482
Total P LN I L DU PR E P S N " $ 4,006,198
‘Balance - Balance

-~ June 30, 2013 Increases . Decreases June 30, 2014
Business-Type Activities

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets

Construction in Progress -~ * '§ 868,030 $ 4925918 §  (603,017) § 5,190,931
Total SR 868,030 4925918 (603,017) 5,190,931
Depreciable Capital Assets : ' ' Lo e
. Land Improvements 250,568 - oo 250,568
Buildings and Improvements 27,496,534 19,763 . - 27,516,297
Infrastructure 24,884,783 - - 24,884,783
- Machinery and Eqmpment - 116,231,560 514,166 (201,565) 16,544,161
Vehicles _ o 1,078,098 53,327 (211,558) 919,867
~Total o ‘ 69,941,543 587,256 (413,123) 70,115,676
Less: Accumulated Depreciation o . AT
Land Improvements 248,803 1,588 . 250,391
Buildings and Improvements 15,034,958 546,075 - 15,581,033
“Infrastructure . 6,208,580 369,942 T 6,578,522
Machinery and Eqmpment 713,674,403 320,668 {197,960) 13,797,111
Vehicles - 764,185 70,104 (211,558) 622,731
.. Total o 35,930,929 1,308,377 (409,518) 36,829,788
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net . 34,010,614 (721,121) (3,605) 33,285,888
Total Lo 0§ 34878644 $ 4204797 §  (606,622) $ 38,476,819
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NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued
Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows:

Water L s 16301

Sewer oo 591,986

* Total o 8 1308377

N.OT_E 4 - RESTRICTIONS ON ASSETS

Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
Restricted assets consist of cash, cash equivalents and investments for the following funds:

. . Restricted

Fund o . Balance - Restriction
~-General - Cash - § 20,089 Reserve for Duffy Fairgrounds Stadium repairs
- General - Cash $ 2,037,753 Reserve for capital projects ' '

General - Cash = - % 37,586 Reserve for specml assessment sxdewalk program

~.Special Revenue - Cash  § 183,119 F ederal and State community development grants

Special Revenue - Cash .§ 28,982  Reserve for airport debt service

Capital - Cash --$ 804,069 Reserve for capital pro;ect acquisitions and
R o S construction :
Water - Cash =~~~ $ 222523 Reserve for capital prolect ach.lSIthIlS and
L - construction :
Sewer-Cash . .~ § 3,348,498- ~ Reserve for capital pl‘O_]eCt acqu151t1ons and

' o . construction :
Sewer - Cash -8 13913  Excess debt proceeds reserved for debt service
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NOTE 5 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

To assist in the rehabilitation of homes and apartments of low and moderate-income persons, the

City has been awarded various grants for its "Housing Improvement Program" from the CDBG

Small Cities Program and the North Country HOME Consortium. The purpose of this program is

to improve living conditions in Watertown by promoting repair and rehabilitation of the local
- housing stock. The primary objective is to eliminate conditions that might become hazardous to the
- health or safety of local residents. Energy conservation improvements, historic preservation and
other necessary repairs will also be encouraged whenever assistance is provided under this program.
Grants are subject to repayment if the owner moves or sells the property within the number of years
established by the grant, prorated equally per year. Loans are repaid in monthly installments ranging
from five to thirty years and are subject to immediate repayment if the owner moves or sells the
property. The loans are collateralized by a mortgage on the home. The grants are not collateralized.
The balance of the grants subject to repayment at June 30, 2014 was $764 810. The balance of the
loans subject to repayment at June 30, 2014 was $739,237. o

‘The following table summarizes notes receivable at June 30, 2014:

Grant Source Grant Purpose Grant Loan Terms LT Loan
' ' Balance Balance
NYS Rental Rehabilitate apartment $ 0 | Loan is subordinate to existing $ 71,500
Rehabilitation | building - { mortgages, maturing 2024 and bearing '
Section 17 : interest at 6.25%. All accrued interest
| Program -1989 and principal are payable at maturity.
I Deferred revenue has also been recorded
equivalent to the amount of the loan
outstanding.
CDBG Small Single purpose home | $ 200 | Loans not to exceed $20,000 to be ] $261,290
Cities - 2005 ownership ' repaid at 0% interest in monthly :
- | installments over 20 - 30 years
CDBG Smali Single purpose housing ' $ 0 | Over 5 years in monthly installments at a $3,719
| Cities - 2006 rehabilitations rate of $18 per $1,000
CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 74,921 | Over 5 to 10 years in monthly $101,872
Cities - 2008 downtown apartments installments at a rate of $18 per $1,000
CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 69,319 | Up to 20 years at (% interest for $ 143,000
Cities - 2009 downtown apartments ' downtown apartments and up to 10 years S
. at 0% for rental rehabilitations
CDBG Small Rental rehabilitations and $ 18,089 | Up to 20 years at 0% interest for newly $ 157,856
Cities -2011 downtown apartments developed rental apartments and up to 10
years at 0% for rental rehabilitations
CDBG Small Renta! rehabilitations and $ 138,286 | Up to 20 years at 0% interest for newly $0
Cities - 2012 downtown apartments - | developed rental apartments and up to 10
years at (% for rental rehabilitations
CDBG Small City-wide housing 1 . 80| 5 years - 20 years at 0% interest for 30
Cities - 2013 rehabilitations - | newly developed rental apartments and 5 S
R ' o — 10 years at 0% for City-wide -
rehabilitations
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NOTE 5 - NOTES RECEIVABLE - Continued

North Country Repair and rehabilitate the | $ 243,975 | N/A R N/A
HOME local housing stock ' S .
Consortium — ' '
2007 - 2013
Program Income | Repair and rehabilitate the | $ 220,020 | Loan repayments received from N/A
-CDBG Small | local housing stock " | recipients of previous CDBG Small
Cities Cities grant awards
' Total | $ 764,810 | Total | $ 739,237

NOTE 6 - SHORT-TERM DEBT

The City did not issue or retire any short—term debt dunng the ﬁscal year and had none outstandmg
atJune3O 2014 . o _ R

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the following changes occurred in long-term obli_gatio;xs_:_ _

Governmental Activities
: TR ‘Balance o Balance Due Within
July 1, 2013 Additions  Reductions June 30,2014 One Year
General Obligation Bonds $ 15,722,706 $ 3,863,574 $ (5,134,022) $ 14,452,258 § 2,152,082
Compensated Absences 205,867 1,808 - 207,675 30,000
Landfill Monitoring - - 198,000 C- (18,000) 180,000 18,000
Total ' -$ 16,126573 $ 3,865382 § (5,152,022) $ 14,839.933 § 2,200,082

The Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2014 1nc1udes a deferred amount of $1 17 958 on the
advance refunding of bonds.

Busmess-'l‘ype Actlvmes

Balsnce ' ' Balance Due Within
July 1, 2013 Adt_iitions Reductions -June 30,2014 One Year

General Obligation Bonds:

“Water 0% 3870070 %3 992453 $ (1,131,552) $ 3,730,971 § 488,034
Sewer S 3,182,224 5,933,973 (1,279,426) 7,836,771 724,884
Total = 7052294 § 6926426 § (2410978) § 11,567,742 § 1212918
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

- General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds are direct obhgatlons and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.
These bonds generally are issued as 20 to 30 year serial bonds with equal amounts of prmmpai
matunng each year General obhgatlon bonds at June 30 2014 are as folIows

: Interest Original Paid Outstanding Maturity

Rate - ~Amount . June 30,2014 . June 30,2014 Date
- Sanitary and Storm Sewers 960% § 2,330,000 § 75000 % 175,000 12/2017
. Public Improvements 4.00-5.00% 2,310,000 10,000 40,000 " 5/2021
Public Improvements 2.75-4.25% 8,145,000 525,000 ' - 1/2024
- Public Improvements 4.00-4.375% 5,700,000 400,000 400,000 11/2020
Public Improvements 4.625-7.5% 250,000 25,000 50,000 11/2015
Public Improvements 3.25-4.00% 7,345,000 475,000 3,525,000 2/2023
Public Improvemenis 2.50-325% 3,220,000 325,000 1,625,000 9/2018
Public Improvements 3.125-4.00% 2,225,000 225,000 1,350,000 12/2024
- Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.A  2.00-4.00% 2,175,000 125,000 1,810,000 11/2025
Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.B  2.00-3.75% 1,635,060 225,000 420,000 5/2020
Public Imp. Refunding, Ser.C  2.00-6.00% 3,695,000 265,000 2,940,000 11/2022
"Public Improvements - 2.00-3.00% 2,035,000 225,000 1,325,000 6/2021
.Public Improvements 3.00-3.50% 1,645,000 145,000 1,500,000 10/2027
Public Imp. Refunding 1.00- 2.625% 4,485,000 o= . 4,485,000 11/2022
Public Improvements, Ser B 1.50-2.75% 1,195,000 - 1,195,060 4/2024
Public Improvements, Ser. B 2.00-3.25% 5,110,000 . . - 5,110,000 4/2029
Total Serial Bonds L e e 8 3,645,000 826,020,000
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

'General Obligation Bonds - Continued

Annual debt service requirements to matunty for general obhgatlon bonds for ﬁscal year endmg
“June 30 2014 are as follows ‘ : _

‘Governmental Activities .
) Principal Interest - Total
2015 s 2,152,082 $ 495559 § 2,647,641
2016 S 2,007,994 401,754 2,429,748
2017 T 1,848872 . 343811 2,192,683
2018 1,781,357 288,194 2,069,551
2019 o 1,650,112 234,540 1,884,652
| 12020 - 2024 o 4399841 515,119 4,914,960
2025-2029 o 592,000 27,787 . 619,787
Totals . $ 14452258 $ 2306764 $ 16,759,022
Business-type Activities
- Principal ~ Interest :Tota_l

2015 S8 1212018 8 330,120 $ 1,543,038
2016 1,207,006 294,897 1,501,903
2017 1,196,128 260,623 1,456,751
12018 T L173,643 227,632 1,401,275
2019 1,104,888 195,830 1,300,718
12020 - 2024 3,570,159 607,097 4,177,256
2025-2029 . 2,103,000 199,242 2,302,242
Totals . $ 11,567,742 $ 2115441 § 13,683,183
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

~ Airport Debt

The City transferred ownership of the Watertown International Airport to Jefferson County on
March 1, 2006. In accordance with the transfer agreement, Jefferson County provided the City with
the necessary funds to retire all outstanding general obligation bonds as they mature. The City
invested $301,168 in State and Local Government Series securities with the proceeds received from
Jefferson County in various amounts and at various interest rates, which will produce the funds
necessary to meet the principal and interest obligations of the outstanding airport debt. The
outstanding principal balance of airport debt at June 30, 2014 was § 28,250. - '

Advance Refunding

On August 27, 2002, the City issued $2,155,000 in general obligation bonds with an average
interest rate of 3.42% to advance refund $1,975,000 of outstanding 1992 Serial bonds with an
average interest rate of 6.009%. The net proceeds (after payment of underwriting fees, insurance,
and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government Securities. Those securities were
“deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service

payments on the 1992 series bonds. A difference in cash flow requirements of $125,248 and a net o

present value savings of $109,404 were a result of this advance refundmg by the City.

On April 15, 2011, the City issued $2,175,000 in general obligation bonds (Senes A) with an
average interest rate of 3.64% to advance refund $2,140,000 of outstanding November 15, 1997
serial bonds with an average interest rate of 5.03%. The net proceeds (after payment of
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used to
redeem all of the outstanding 1997 series bonds on May 15, 2011. A difference in cash flow
requirements of $225,831 and a net present value savmgs of $ 175, 826 were a resuIt of thls advance
' refundmg by the C1ty o o SRS :

On April 15, 2011, the City issued $1,635,000 in general obligation bonds (Series B) with an
average interest rate of 2.37% to advance refund $1,575,000 of outstanding April 15, 2000 serial
bonds ($1,015,000) with an average interest rate of 5.19% and May 15, 2002 serial bonds
($560,000) with an average interest rate of 4.30%. The net proceeds (after payment of underwriting
fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government securities. Those
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used to redeem the 2000
and 2002 series bonds on May 15, 2011. All but $40,000 of the April 15, 2000 serial bonds and
$23,750 of the May 135, 2002 serial bonds were redeemed on May 15, 2011. A difference in cash
flow requirements of $91 825 and a net present value savmgs of $84 907 were a result of thls .
advance refl.mdmg by the City. x
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Advance Refunding - Continued |

On April 15, 2011, the City issued $3,695,000 in general obligation bonds (Series C) with an
‘average interest rate of 5.19% to advance refund $3,625,000 of outstanding November 15, 1997
taxable serial bonds with an average interest rate of 7.09%. The net proceeds (afler payment of
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used to
redeem the 1997 series bonds on May 15, 2011. Additionally, the City used $1,000,000 of General
Fund Balance to increase the amount of outstanding November 15, 1997 taxable serial bonds
. redeemed to $4,625,000. Accordingly all of the outstanding 1997 taxable serial bonds were
redeemed on May 15, 2011. A combined difference in cash flow requirements of $2,552,088 and a
net present value savings of $543 580 were the result of the advance reﬁmdmg and use of fund _
balance by the City. ' : - : : : :

On June 18, 2014, the City issued $4,485,000 in general obligation bonds with an average interest
. rate of 1.29% to refund $2,400,000 of outstanding January 15, 2005 serial bonds with an average

“interest rate of 3.67%. and advance tefund $2,100,000 of outstanding November 15, 2005 serial
bonds with an average interest rate of 4.15%. The net proceeds (after payment of underwriting fees,
insurance, and other issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Government securities. Those
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and used to redeem all of the
outstanding January 2005 series bonds on July 21, 2014 and the November 2005 series bonds will
‘be refunded on November 15, 2014. A difference in cash flow requirements of $346,783 and a net
' present value savmgs of $327 420 were a result of this advance refundmg by the Clty

NOTE 8 - UNEARNED REVENUE

| “General Fund
. Unearned Property Tax Revenue, Refuse Tote Revenue

and Prepaid Interest Installments on Special Assessments. N I_ $ 163,233
- Capital Projects Fund - ' AT S
~ Unearned State Aid and Other Miscellaneous Sources o 8 56,646

‘Special Revenue Fund ' R e
- Notes receivable_Frunded from Grant_Proceeds o o S $§ 1,553,619
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NOTE 9 — RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description

The City of Watertown participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement
System (ERS), the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) and the
Public Employees Group Life Insurance Plan (Systems). These are cost-sharing multiple-employer
retirement systems. The Systems provide retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
The New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL) govern obligations of
employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employers. As set forth in the NYSRSSL,
the Comptroiler of the State of New York (Comptroller) serves as sole trustee and administrative
head of the Systems. The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules and regulations for the
administration and transaction of the business of the systems and for the custody and control of
their funds. The Systems issue a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to:

New York State and Local Retlrement Systems, Gov. Alﬁed E Sm1th State Ofﬁce Bmldlng,
Albany, New York 12244 RV : : _

Funding Policy

The ERS system is contributory except for employees who joined the New York State and Local
Employees' Retirement System before July 26, 1976. Employees hired between July 27, 1976 and
 December 31, 2009 contribute 3% of their salary and after ten years of service become
noncontributory as well. Employees hired between January 1, 2010 and March 31, 2012 contribute
3% of their salary for all years of public service and there is a limitation on the amount of overtime
that can be included as wages. Employees hired after April 1, 2012 contributed 3% of their salary
through March 31, 2013 and thereafter the percentage of salary conmbuted ranges ﬁ'om 3. 0% to
6.0% dependlng on annual wages. o _ o

The PFRS system is contributory except for employees who joined the New York State and Local
Employees' Retirement System before June 30, 2009. Employees hired between July 1, 2009 and
January 8, 2010 contribute 3% of their salary for 25 years or until retirement. Employees hired
between January 9, 2010 and March 31, 2012 contribute 3% of their salary for all years of public
service and there is a limitation on the amount of overtime that can be included as wages.
Employees hired after April 1, 2012 contributed 3% of their salary through March 31, 2013 and

thereafter the peroentage of salary contnbuted Tanges ﬁom 3 0% to 6.0% dependmg on annual o

- wages.
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS- Continued

~ Funding Policy - Continued

‘Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller shall certify annually the rates expressed as
proportions of payroll of members, which shall be used in computmg the eontnbutlons requlred to
be made by employers to the pension accumulation fund - : :

The City of Watertown is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The required
contributions for New York States current year ended March 31, 2014 and two precedmg years _

werc:

k ._'F_YE__6/30/_14 FYE 6/30/13 - FYE 6/30/12

Employer Contnbutxons R

ERS T - % 1,748,158  $ 1,535,739  § 1,232,403
~PFRS B o - 8§ 2516571 $ 2,423,515 § 1,936,189
Employee Contrlbutlons L . ' ' .

"ERS - 8 115471  $ 104,819 § 90,324
PFRS : SR 8 13,678 $. . - 8,954 § - 1,136

The City's contributions made to the Systems were equal to 100 percent of the contributions
" required for each year. Each retirement system issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and supplementary information. The reports may be obtained by
writing to: New York State and Local Employees Ret1rement System, 1 10 State Street Albany, NY
12244 : : -

Bouus Reti_rement Plan

Under the terms of the police and fire union contracts, the City also made available a bonus
retirement plan to all eligible employees. To be eligible, the employee must have accumulated 20
years of service within the retirement system and must retire within 3 years from that date. The
followmg is a schedule of the benefits paid based upon the reurernent date: o

1% Year g 5,000

- 2 Year % 4,000
-3 Year | $ 3,000

The City has reported $20,000 relating to this bonus retirement plan as part of the accrued
compensated absences balance in the General Fund. S
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NOTE 10 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

~ During the year ended June 30, 2009, the City adopted Govermnmental Standards Board Statement
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
than Pensions, on a prospective basis. This statement establishes standards for the measurement,
recognition, and display of other postemployment benefit (OPEB) expenses/expenditures and
related OPEB assets and liabilities, note disclosures, and required supplementary information. The
objective of this statement is to improve the faithfulness of representations and usefulness of
mformatlon mcluded in the ﬁnancml reports of state and local govemments regardmg OPEB

: Plan Descrlgtlo

The City administers its Health Plan {the plan) as a single-employer, self-insured benefit plan, The
City provides postemployment healthcare benefits to certain employees that are eligible to retire
under the New York State Retirement Systems. The plan provides medical and prescription drug
coverage to certain retirees and their dependents based upon the City's collective bargaining

- agreements with its various unions. The financial 1nformat10n for the Clty's plan is oontamed solely o

w1thm these basic ﬁnan01a1 statements

undmg Pohcy

The contribution requ1rements of the members and the City are established by the C1ty's collective
bargaining agreements with its various unions. The required contribution rate of the City and the
members varies depending on the applicable agreement covering the retiree and retiree's date of
hire. Contribution rates for retirees range from 0% to 25% of the monthly premium cost. The City
currently pays for postemployment healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. For the year ended
June 30, 2014, the City contributed approximately $6,960,819 to the plan for its share of the
: hcalth insurance premzums while plan members recewmg beneﬁts contnbuted $610 442. '

Annual OPEB Cost and Net Obligation

The City's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of
the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
_projected to cover normal cost each year and the amortized amount of any unfunded actuarially
accrued liabilities (UAAL) over a period of thirty years. The following table shows the
components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contrlbuted to the
pIan, and the changes in the C1ty s net OPEB obhgatlon : :
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NOTE 10- POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS- Continued

‘Annual OPEB Cost and Net Obligation - Continued
o B : .' B o Business-type  Business-type
Governmental  Activities - Activities -

: Activities ;. Water Fund Sewer Fund Total
‘Annual Required Contribution '
- {ARC) $ 6,817,233 § 462,149 § 335035 $ 7,614,417
. Interest on Net OPEB Obhganon 338,101 39,155 124,946 402,202
-Adjustment toARC . _(322,992) (37,405) {23,831) _ (384,228)
Annual OPEB Cost S 6,832,342 463,899 336,150 7,632,391
Contributions Made T (3,752,755) {123,675) (149451) (4,025,881)
| -Change in Net OPEB Obligation - 3,079,587 '_ 340,224 7 186,699 © 3,606,510
‘Net OPEB Obligation - > - | o o
- Beginning of Year o L 8,452,543 _ 978,864 623,643 10,055,050
‘Net OPEB Obligation - S - - o
End of Year - ' o $ 1 532 130 3 1 ,319,088 $ 810,342 $ 13,661 560

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contnbuted to the plan and _
the net OPEB obhgatlon was as follows : S . :

' Percentage
_ o - of Annual
. " Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
- .. OPEB Cost . - Contributed  Obligation
. FYE 6/30/14 [
‘Governmental Activities $ 6,832,342 54.93% $ 11,532,530
Business-type Activities - Water Fund $ 463,899 . 26.66% $ 1,319,088
Business-type Activities - Sewer Fund - $ 336,150 . - 44.46% - $ 810,342
FYE 6/30/13 g ' L :
‘Governmental Activities $ 6,623,794 53.34% $ 8,452,543
Business-type Activities — Water Fund $ 443,903 23.80% $ 978,865
Business-type Activities — Sewer Fund ~~ § - 324,557 C42.12% § 623,643
FYE 6/30/12 T o '
- Governmental Activities $ 4,209,426 83.92% 5,361,969
~ Business-type Activities — Water Fund $ 294,659 41.84% 640,620
Business-type Activities — Sewer Fund $

239,634  61.53% . 435796
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NOTE 10 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Funded Status and Funding Progress

" As of September 1, 2013, the most recent actuarial interim valuation date, the City's actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $134,515,815 and there were no plan assets. Actuarial
valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend mformatmn .
about the value of plan assets relative to the actuanal accrued hablhty

Actuanai_ Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and the plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuanal Value of assets, cons1stent w1th the long—
term perspectwe of the calculatlons - : Co '

In the September 1, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was
used. The plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years as a level
percentage of projected payrolls on an open basis. The actuarial assumptions include 4.0%
investment rate of return and an inflation rate of 3.0%. The annual healthcare cost trend rate was
estimated at 7.5% for the next fiscal year and decreasing each fiscal year thereafter until reaching
6.10% for the fiscal year endlng June 30 2018 The rate was then adjusted every five years
through 2083 at 4. 40% . _ o _ "
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NOTE 11 — FUND BALANCES

| Non-spendable Fund Balances
Non—spendable fund balances consist of prepaid expenses and inventory at the Municipal Arena
concession stand. It also consists of the prepa1d stop loss i insurance on the C1ty s heaIth insurance
R_est_rieted Fund Balances

- Restricted ﬁmd balanees _conSi_s_t of the following: _
General Fund

~Capital Reserve - Pursuant to Section 6-c of the General Municipal Law of the State of New
York the City established a capital reserve fund to finance future capital improvement projects.

Workers Compensation - An amount reserved to pay workers' compensation claims.

Insurance - An amount reserved to pay claims and judgments for the City's general hablhty and
the cost of prowdmg health care benefits to eligible employees and retirees. ' '

_ 'Tounsm Balance of City's share of the hotel occupancy tax enacted by J efferson County which L

must be used to promote and develop tourism in the City. .

Debt Service - Balance of debt issued on behalf of property owners who elected to partlelpate in
the Clty s ten-year special assessment prOgram for s1dewalk replacements :

| Ot_her Governmental Funds

Mandatory Reserve for Indebtedness - Pursuant to Section 165.00 of the Local Finance Law of
‘the State of New York, the proceeds, which will not be used for the specific purpose of the
borrowing, plus any interest earned or capital gain realized on these proceeds must be used only
for payment of principal and/or interest from which these proceeds were derived. The total '
'a:mount reserved for pnn01pa1 and interest at June 30, 2014 was $3 14,019. : '
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NOTE 11 - FUND BALANCES - Continued

Restncted Fund Balances - Contmued

Proprleta;ry Funds

Mandatory Reserve for Indebtedness - Pursuant to Section 165.00 of the Local Finance Law of
the State of New York, the proceeds, which will not be used for the specific purpose of the
‘borrowing, plus any interest earned or capital gain realized on these proceeds must be used only

for payment of principal and/or interest from which these proceeds were derived. The total = .

amoqnt .re_s_erv_ed fo:_' princi_pal and _inter_est_ in the sewer fund at June 30, 2014 was $.1_3,9 13.
| '_ che_r__Fund Balance Disclosures . | L ”
Deficit Fund Balance | |

| There were 1o funds with a deficit ﬁmd balance at June 30, 2_.014. ‘

Ekcéss -bf Expenditures over Appropriations |

The Risk Retention Fund had excess appropriations of $11,435 over approprlatlons due to hlgher :
. than expectcd legal expenses in defending against claims. : o

_The Debt Service Fund had excess appropriations of $3,059, 377 over appropnations due to the
_ recordmg of the unantmlpated debt refundmg . _ o

NOTE 12 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Operating Transfers

During the course of normal operations, the City records numerous transactions between funds
“including expenditures for semces as well as transfers to ﬁnance various pro_]ects and debt

payments
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NOTE 12 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - Continued
: Operating Transfers - Continued

Inter-fund recelvable and payable balances arlsmg from these transacttons as of June 30 2014
were as follows . o

-~ Inter-fund Inter-fund

- Receivable - Payable
~ General Fund | . ) ; o e $ 335090 $ 160,268
‘Water Fund T 12,403 47,126
Sewer Fund 50,653 6,004
Library Fund TS K 150,650 o 310
Capital Project Funds T 335,000
‘Trust & Agency Fund . . AT - 88
Toal . § 548796 $ 548796

Inter-fund Eliminations
For ﬁnancml statement purposes the followmg mter-fund balances have been ehmmated

: Self-funded

Health
s ' Insurance
- General Fund Fund

 Revenues s s 5,973,490

Expenditures _- . S . 5,973,490 -
Totl . . . § 5073490 § 5973490
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' NOTE 13 - OPERATING LEASES

State Street Parkmg Lot

The City leases a parklng lot located at 250-270 State Street from Wilson Rusbo and Terry
- MacAdam. The term of the original lease is for a five-year period from October 22, 2011 through
October 21, 2016. The annual rent for the current fiscal year is $2,500. The lease payment is
payable in advance by September 15th of the previous year. On October 17, 2011, the City
; Council approved a new lease for the period from October 22, 2011 through October 21, 2016.

Minimum future rentals to be pald over the term of the lease for ﬁscal yeat ended June 30 are as
follows o : . o o .

' Fair_grounds Property Lease .
The City is the lessor of a portion of the Fairgrounds property to the Watertown Family YMCA.
“The lease dated July 9, 2009 is for a term of twenty-five years with an option to renew by

Watertown Family YMCA for an addltlonal ﬁﬁeen years 1f such renewal is approved by the New .
York State Legislature, ' : . o

-Minimum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows:

2015 S e s 25800

. 2016 e 25,800
2017 L T T : o 25800
2018 B LI S 25,800
2019 _ L 26,768

- Thereafter .~ - o s 434,139
Total -~ . 8 564,107
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NOTE 13 OPERATING LEASES - Contlnued

Publlc Safety Bulldmg Lease

The Clty has entered into an amended Inter-municipal Agreement with the County of Jefferson,
New York, for the joint operation and maintenance of a County/City Public Safety Building.
Minimum annual lease payments are calculated on a pro rata basis of square footage utilized by
- the City and consist of the costs incurred for debt service, operation and maintenance expenses.
' These lease payments are offset by a percentage of the costs incurred by the City for the
construction of the facility. Furthermore, the City is liable for a portion of the debt regardless of
the City continuing the lease or not. Total rental expendltures for the year ended June 30, 2014
were $337 222 . C :

Estimated minimum future rental payments under the non- cancelabie operatmg lease as of June__
30 are as follows o : . '

_'_2015 oy 157,855

Total o8 157855
Equipment Leases

The City is the lessor of certain office equipment. The lease dated August 13, 2013 is for a term _
of five years Mmlmum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows: ' :

_2015 _ T o .:_ S . ‘ . $ .:..2’606

2016 L 2606
2017 S e e s S 2,606
2018 L e 2,606
2009 S <~ 3
'Total T . $ 10858

The City is the lessor of certain ofﬁce equipment. The lease dated August 10, 2010 is for a term
of four years. Mxmmum future rentals on the lease as of J une 30 are as follows o :
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NOTE 13 — OPERATING LEASES - Continued
Equi_pment Leases - Continued _

The City is the lessor of certain office equipment. The lease dated November 2, 2011 is for a
term of ﬁve years, Mlmmum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows

2015 TR o %8 1,164

Total e . .. Ll . S o - e : $ 3.003
Vehicle Leases

The City is the lessor of a certain police vehicle. The lease dated June 1, 2013 for a term of one
year was extended six months. Minimum future rentals on the lease as of June 30 are as follows:

2015 S s e

Total :._ - S o s 2,062

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation

The City has been named in several claims arising out of the conduct of its business, including
claims for property damage, personnel practices, personal injury, false arrest, and disputes over
contracts and suits contesting assessments. These claims, in the opinion of City officials, will not
result in material judgments against the City, and, therefore, are not expected to have a material
effect on the general-purpose financial statements. Additionally, as of June 30, 2014, the
financial impact of these claims, if any, cannot be determined. Accordingly, the general-purpose
financial statements have not been adjusted to reflect the potential result of these claims.
However, the City has accumulated a reserve of $399 431 as of June 30 2014 for un—funded o
general 11ab1hty clalms - o
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iNOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -
-Contmued

Grant Programs

The City participates in a number of Federal and State grant programs. These programs are
subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors of their representatives. The City
believes, based upon its review of current activity and prior experience, the amount of
~ disallowances resulting from these audits, 1f any, will not be s:gnlﬁcant to the Cltys ﬁnanczal ~
posmon or results of operattons : : : -

Env1ronmental Concerns

- On April 27, 2007, the City acqulred several parcels of property from Black Clawson known as
~ Sewall's Island. On December 26, 2006, the City received a grant under the Environmental
Restoration Program (ERP) from the New York State Department of Conservation for the
investigation of the Sewall's Island project site. The ERP grant will provide $705,540 towards the
investigation phase of the project. The City's local share to the ERP grant will be funded from a
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Brownfields Pilot Program grant. The City Council has
-'spent $900,545 for a professional services contract with Lu Engineers to prepare the investigation
phase of the Environmental Restoration Program. As of June 30, 2014, the City is not expected .
‘to have any liability for this potent1a1 env1ronmenta1 clean-up due to the "safe harbor“ prov1s1ons
“ofthe ERP grant. : : : S L

The Clty is engaged in many activities (i.e. water and sewer service, refuse collection, and
gasoline storage) in the normal course of operations that are potentially hazardous to the
environment. As of June 30, 2014, the City is not aware of any 51gmﬁcant enwronmental
problems that should be disclosed in the ﬁnancml statements : -

'L_a_ndfill Closure

_ State and federal laws and regulations required the City to close its landfill site in 1993, Although
the closure has been completed, the City must continue to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. The costs incurred during the
closure were expensed as incurred. The post-closure monitoring occurs three times a year at an
estimated annual expenditure of $18,000. At June 30, 2014, an estimated $180,000 in post-
closure care cost will be incurred over the remaining 12-year period. This liability is recorded as
long-term debt in the Statement of Net Posmon and is amortlzed in the General Fund at
' approxnnately $18,000 each year, - : : o

The current landfill-monitoring contract expired in 2000. The estimated total liability was - -

computed assummg future contracts momtormg costs would be comparable.
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- : CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
- NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC F INANCIAL STATEMENTS | R
June 30, 2014

NOTE 14 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -
Contmued

Black River Fund

The City of Watertown owns a hydroelectric facility on the Black River. On November 21,
1994, the City Council approved an agreement between the City and New York Rivers United,

an environmental group, for the establishment of a Black River Fund. On June 16, 1995, the .

- Federal Energy Regulatory Agency (FERC) issued the City a hydroelectric generation license.

This Fund is established in consideration of the immitigable impacts of the Watertown Project
_and for the purpose of financing projects and facilities that enhance the natural resources and

“+human values of the Black River within the City's boundaries. This Fund will be used to finance
projects and facilities which conserve and enhance the fish, plant and wildlife resources of the

~ Black River, 1mprove water quahty, educate the public about the nver and its uses, and pr0v1de
for recreation. . : S SRR S '

' -This Fund is being administered by a Black River Fund Committee, which shall determine the
distribution of funding each year. If able t0 demonstrate that their proposal provides a clear

' public benefit, governmental agencies, non-profit organizations, education institutions, and
individuals shall be eligible to receive funding from the Black River Fund. On December 16,
2006, the Committee allocated $20,000 to New York Rivers United to document the river's
ecology in terms of quality, water quantity, general biodiversity and ecological status since the
passage of the 1977 Federal Clean Water Act. The Committee contributed $80, 000 to the Clty for _
lts Hold Brothers Access Improvement Project between 2008 and 2009. ,

" Under the terms of the agreement, within sixty (60) days of the City's acceptance of a new FERC
license, the City agreed to contribute $30,000 to cover the first three (3) years of the license's
forty (40) year term. The City started to contribute $10,000 annually beginning in the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2003, for a total agreed contributzon of $400, 000 The balance in the fund as of
June 30, 2014 was $57 987. B SRR . . .

Addltlonally, the City agreed to establish a replacement reserve to accumulate funds towards the
anticipated cost of repairing, replacing, or retiring of energy generation equipment at the facility.
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: CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
e ——————

NOTES TO AUDITED BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
J une 30 2014

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -
Continued

Electrical Distribution System Agreement

The City approved a sale of its Electrical Dlstnbutlon System in March 1991 In connectwn with
the sale, the partzes agreed to the following: : :

| 'ﬁi. National Grid was to operate the existing municipal hydro plant at no cost to the City
- "_begmmng January 1, 1991 and extendmg untﬂ removal of the plant from servme for _
‘ reconstructlon :

2. The City would proceed in the process of undertaking re-licensing of the hydro plant in
- accordance with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) rules and
- regulations, and would undertake the refurbishing of the plant. o

3. The City will lease a11 of its sutplus power to National Grid for a term not exceeding forty
. ‘years. :

The City commenced reconstruction of the hydroelectric plant on June 2, 1997 The pro_lect
wh1ch cost $9,075,000, was completed in January 2000 ‘ S : _

Metropolitan Planning Organization

'Aﬁer the 2010 Census was completed, the U.S. Census Bureau delineated an Urbanized Area
that includes the City of Watertown. The Urbanized Area de31gnat10n set in motlon changes to
the C1ty s reiatlonshlp with several federal programs :

A Metropolitan Planning Area has to be delineated around the Urbanized Area and a
Metropolitan Planning Organization formed to plan for the expenditure of federal highway and
transit funds. A Memorandum of Understanding between the City, Jefferson County and the
Regional Office of the NYS Department of Transportation must be approved by the Governor
As of the date of this report the agreement has not been approved by the Govemor

The federal Office of Management and Budget used the Urbanized Area to create the Watertown-
Fort Drum, NY Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) on February 28, 2013. As a Principal City
in the MSA, Watertown became an Entitlement Community under U.S. Housing and Urban
Development’s Community Development Block Grant program. This means the City will be
receive an annual allocation of community development funds.

The City will also become responsuble for enforcing U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
storm water regulations under the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) program.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY.INFORMATION
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF THE FUNDING PROGRESS OF THE POST oo
EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFIT PLAN R .
Year Ended June 30 2014 '

Actuarial
Valunation
 Date

.6/30/2014
- 6/30/2013

.. 6/30/2012 .

Actuarial

- Accrued
Actuarial Liability _

Value of (AAL) - Entry - Unfunded
. Assets  Age AAL (UAAL)
@ W k)
$ - $134,515,815 $134,515,815

- 130,841,681 130,841,681

Lih o 198,650,932 98,650,932

CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

Funded

Ratio (a/b)

0%
0%

0%

- Covered

Payroll
(@

$ 18,459,558
17,877,626

- 18,022,256

" UAALsasa

Percentage of
Covered
Payroll - -
((b-a)/c)

729.00%
732.00%
547.00%

| See paragraph on supplemental schedules 1ncluded in audltor $ report
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30 2014 '

-Actual Variance With

Budgeted Amounts ~ Amounts Final Budget
o ‘ Budgetary Favorable
Original Final " Basis {Unfavorable)
Resources (Inflows) : o _ . D SR
Real Property Taxes -+ 8 7,461,055 $ 7.461,055 $ 7,601,674 $ 140,619
Real Property Tax Items S o 282,850 282,850 324,324 41,474
Non-Property Taxes Co . 19,073,000 19,073,000 17,997,291 {1,075,709)
Departmental income S0 T 4,958,050 4,958,050 5,492,777 534,727
Intergovernmental Charges S . 144,360 144,360 154,556 10,236
" Use of Money and Property o s T3S “11,735 - 97,923 26,188
Licenses and Permits ISR 83,600 83,600 110,098 - 26,498
- Fines and Forfeitures ' ‘ 151,000 151,000 120,182 '(30,818)
Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss 155,100 155,100 112,972 (42,128)
Miscellaneous Local Sources oo 696,501 695,501 853,840 157,339
Interfund Revenue S B = 1,029,715 967,780 1,100,004 132,224
- State Source ' L 5,433,875 5,433,875 5,431,626 (2,249)
Federal Sources _ Lo 500,600 500,600 438,328 (62,272)
" Transfers from Other Funds ' 55,160 55,100 186,344 131,244
. Amounts Available for Appropration o '40,096,541 40,034,606 . 40,021,979 ' (12.627)
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows) o L : . ' | Lo
General Government Support = © 6,091,981 5,667,202 5,063,278 603,924
Public Safety o ; . - 16,121,505 15,910,555 15,472,862 437,693
Transportation 4,719,497 5,100,272 " 4,602,840 497,432
Economic Assistance and Development C 107,000 116,650 106,008 10,642
Cuiture and Recreation . 1,780,704 2,034,404 1,606,007 428,307
Home and Community Serv1ces RN - 1,276,120 1,253,828 1,078,704 175,124
Employee Benefits ' o . 8,058,775 8,015,450 7,256,834 758,616
. Debt Service Lo 2,654,119 2,654,119 2,644,203 9,916
Transfers to Other Funds C 2,501,868 2,524,204 2,521,499 2,705
Total Charges to Appropriations 43,311,569 43,276,684 40,352 325 2,924,359
Excess (Deficiency) of Resources Over SR ' - o s
Charges to Appropriations ' (3,215,028) (3,242,078) (330,346) - 2,911,732
'Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance _ 3,215,028 3,242,078 - (3,242,07_8)
Excess / (Deficiency) of Resources Over o B o : SR -
Charge to Appropriations R b - 3 - (330,346) _% .. (330.346)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year .~ . © 00 o 0 16186,135 o
Fund Equity Transfer T S - 52272
Fund Balance, End of Year . E R S - $ 15,908,061

- See paragraph on supplemental schedules included in auditor's report.




BOWERS & OMPANY
 CPASs PLLC

. CERTIFIED PbBLIC ACCOUNTANTS = BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT :
‘OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH o
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

~ SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND
' MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
' THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

- We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
-States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
-~ Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
‘statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely

- presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the

- related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Watertown, New
“York’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting |

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of

: ~ Watertown, New York’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
“auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
“opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
“effectiveness of the City of Watertown’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an

' oplmon on the effectlveness of the Clty of Watefsown New York s mternal control. ‘

--A deﬁcz‘ency in internal control exists when the design or operatlon of a contro] does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,

- or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
‘combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of

~ deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a matenal weakness yet 1mp0rtant enough to -
merlt attentlon by those charged w1th govemance : : -

120 Madison Street, 1700 AXA Tower |l, Syracuse, NY 13202 Phone: 315.234.1100 = Fax 315, 234 1111
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be matenal weaknesses

However material weaknesses may ex1st that have not been 1dent1ﬁed ' :

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Watertown, New York’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requ1red to be reported .
: under GovernmentAudztmg Standards. : - : S '

'Purpos_e of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s

internal control and complzance Accordmgly, thls commumcanon 1s not surtable for any other L

5*‘““47‘/ 4/0/"“1 .

Watertown, New York
December 16, 2014
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BOWERS& OMPANY
~ " CPAS PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS » BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
‘OMB CIRCULAR A-133 '

SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND
MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
- THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Watertown, New York’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the City of Watertown, New York’s major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2014. The City of Watertown, New York’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of audltor S results section of the accompmlymg schedule of ﬁndmgs and
questloned costs. - - S _

Management’s Responsibility

| Management is responsible for compliance w1th the requlrements of laws, regulatwns oontracts
and grants applicable to its federal programs -

'Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Watertown, New
York’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
“to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Watertown, New York’s compliance
with those requirements and performmg Such other procedures as we con31dered necessary in the
cu'cumstances : . - :
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 We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
. program. However, our audlt does not provxde legal detenmnatxon of Clty of Watertown New
York’s comphance ' - Lo : :

Opmmn on Each Major Federal Program

'In our opinion, City of Watertown, New York, complied, in all material respects, with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have direct and material effect on each of 1ts )

_ ma_]or federal programs for the year ended June 30 2014
_ Repor_t on Internal Control Over Compliance

- Management of City of Watertown, New York is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Watertown, New
- York’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
~material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
~"do not express an 0p1n10n on the effectweness of Clty of Wateftown, New York’s mtemal control

: over comphance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
_ over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
- deficiencies, in interal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over comphance
yet mlportant enough to merit attent1on by those charged with, governance -
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the Hmited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
-over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be matenal weaknesses.
_' However material weaknesses may exist that have not been 1dent1ﬁed R

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of

- our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
reqmrements of OMB Czrcular A 133 Accordmgly, this report is not suitable for any other

' &m ;/' a'/o/‘”’j  - |

Watertown, New York
- December 16, 2014
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - Y '

Year Ended June 30, 2014

| Federal Grantor/Program Title

US Department of Housing & Urban Development
Passed Through New York State Homes & Community Renewal:
Community Development Block Grant / State's Loan
Community Development Block Grant / Statwe's Loan
Community Development Block Grant / Program Income
Total Community Development Block Grant / State's Loan
Passed Through Development Authority of the North Country
HOME Investment Partnerships Program
HOME Investment Partnerships Program
' - Total Deparument of Housing & Urban Development

UJS Department of Transportation
Passed Through New York State:
State and Community Highway Safety
~ Highway Planning and Construction
Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized Areas
- Total Department of Transportation

US Department of Homeland Security
Assistance to Firefighters Grant
Homeland Security Grant Program
Homeland Security Grant Program

US Department of Environmental Protection Agency
Passed Through New York State:
Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements

US Department of Justice
- Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
Recovery Act-Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
{JAG) Program / Grants to Units of Local Government
Bullet Proof Vest Partnership
Total Department of Justice

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

Federal
CFDA

o Number

14.228

14.228

14.228

114.239
14239

- 20.600

20.205

20509

. 97.044

97.067

©97.067

© 66.818

16.738

16,738

16.607

Pass-Through Federal
Grantor# - Expenditures
1207HR75-12  $ 141,609
1207HRS7-11 290,198
| R 50
31857 .
M12-DC360512 16,304

‘M13-DC360512 - 3231

451,892
PD-00220-(023) - 7,350
PIN 7753.15.221 202,759

- PIN 7796.10.303 7,470

217,579
EMW-2012-FO-02364 46,926
 C190329 53,167
C190319 71,164
o 171,257
“BF-97211311 21,751
2012-DI-BX-1135 4,370
2010-DJ-BX-0977 - - 6700
5,175
16,245
~§  878.724

See paragraph on supplemental schedules included in audltor s repoﬁ
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_ CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
NOTES TO SCHEPULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS '
June 30, 2014 '

'NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activity of federal
- -award programs administered by the City, which is described in Note 1 to the City's
accompanying financial statements, using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Federal
awards that are included in the schedule may be received directly from federal agencies, as well
as federal awards that are passed through from other govemment agencies. The information is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule

'may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the ﬁnancial statements. -

4 Matchlng costs (the Clty’s share of certam program costs) are not mcluded in the reported, e
_expendrtures i S . : : :

_ The amounts reported as federal expenditures were obtained from the federal financial reports for
_ the applicable programs and periods. The amounts reported in these reports are prepared from

records maintained for each program whlch are reconcﬂed w1th the Crtys ﬁnancral reportlng
system . R :

'NOTE 2 - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
LOANS

‘Loan activity for the Community Development Block grant loans is as follows:

‘Balance at o e Balance at

 CFDA#  Julyl,2013  Issuance  Forgivemess  June 30,2014
14228 § 640090 $ 351,034 $ 207215 § 7643809

NOTE 3 - SUBRECIPIENTS

No amounts were provided to subreceipients.
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -
June30 2014 o o

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an umnodlﬁed opxmon on the ﬁnanc1al statements of City of

_Watertown, New York

No significant deﬁclencws related to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the

‘Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

" and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Fmanc1a1 Statements Perfcnned in Accordance w1th

- Government Audztmg Standards.

No instances of noncomphance matenal to the financial statements of the Cxty of Watertown
New York were disclosed dunng the audlt S :

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are

- reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
‘ 'Internal Control over Comphance chmred by OMB Circular A-133. S

The auditor's report on comphance for the major federal award programs of the City of

; Watet’town, New York eXpresses an unmodlﬁed opinion on all major federal programs.

No audit findings that are rcqulred to be reported in accordance with Sectmn 510(a) of OMB

; Clrcular A-133 are reported in this Schedule

- The program tested as a major federal program was — Commumty DeveIopmcnt Block Grant
' Program CFDA #14 228. S . :

The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Watertown, New York was _determi_ned tobea low-risk_auditee. -

NOTE B - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT FINDINGS

There were no findings to report.

NOTE C - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings to report.
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2014 ‘ B R

There were no prior year audit findings.
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- _CER_T FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS = BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL

. CONTROLS OVER STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED BASED ON
. AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

- GO VERNMEN T AUDITING STANDARDS '

: _SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MAYOR AND
- MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF o
THE CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

“Report on Compliance For Each State Transportation Assistance Program Tested

“We have audited the compliance of City of Watertown, New York with the types of compliance
requirements described in the preliminary Draft Part 43 of the New York State Codification of

" Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) that are applicable to each state transportation assistance program
' tested for the year ended June 30, 2014. The programs tested are identified in the summary of audit
results section of the accompanying schedule of ﬁndmgs and questloned costs for state
: transportatlon a331stance expended : : " :

- -Management’s Responsnblllty

_. Management is responsible for comphance with the requirements of laws, regulatlons contracts
-and grants apphcable o 1ts state ass1stance programs S : :

.' Audltor 'S Respmmblllty

©Our responsibility is to express an oplmon on City of Watertown, New York‘s compliance for each
~state transportation assistance program tested based on our audit. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

- America; the standards apphcable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Draft Part 43 of NYCRR. Those

" standards and Draft Part 43 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to

' above, that could have a direct and material effect on the state transportation assistance programs
tested, has occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of
Watertown, New York's compliance with those requirements and performing other procedures as

- we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion on compliance for each state transportation assistance program tested. However, our

audit does not provide a legal determmatlon of Clty of Watertown New York's comphance thh s

those requxrements
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- Opinion on Each State Transportation Assistance Program Tested

In our opinion, City of Watertown, New York complied, in all material respects, with the
requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of 1ts state transportatlon ass1stance
programs tested for the year ended June 30, 2014 SV o

] Report on Interna__l Control Over Compliance

The management of City of Watertown, New York is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to state transportation assistance programs tested. In planning and performing our
“audit of compliance, we considered City of Watertown, New York's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on state transportation
~ assistance programs tested in order to determine our auditing procedures that are appropriate for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each state transportation assistance program -
tested and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with Draft Part
43 of NYCRR, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal

control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an oplmon on the effectiveness of Clty of
Watertown, New York's lnternal control over eomphance ‘ : : o S

A deficiency in internal com‘rol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management of employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
* a state transportation assistance program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a state transportation assistance program will not be prevented, or
detected and comrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
‘a type of compliance requirement of a state transportation assistance program that is less severe
 than a material weakness in internal control over comphance yet nnportant enough to merlt
attention by those charged w1th governance. ‘ :

Ou:r consideration of internal control over compliance was for the imited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
- any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses
However materlal weaknesses may ex1st that have not been 1dent1ﬁed ' :
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Report on Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended

We have audited the financial statements of City of Watertown, New York as of and for the year
~ended June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2014, which
‘contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the
purpose of forming an opinion on City of Watertown, New York's financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of state transportation assistance expended is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by Draft Part 43 of NYCRR, and is not a required part of
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
- accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unites States of America. In our
-opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state transportation assistance expended is fairly stated in

- all matenal respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken asa whole '

.The purpose of this report on internal control over comphance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the reqmrements
of Draﬂ Part 43 of NYSCRR Accordmgly, tlns report is not sultable for any other purpose.

Watertown, New York
December 16,2014 .
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTAN CE EXPENDED
June 30, 2014 . ‘

Program Title o R ~ Ref, Number - Expenditures '

‘Consolidated Local Street and Highway Improvement

Program Capital - Reimbursement / CHIPS I o 732059 $ 520,523
Marchiselli Match For Federal Aid Highway Projects . D032467 - 38,017
Bus Transit Operating Assistance T 234,723
Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized Area - o R S R

DPW Maintenance Facility (Bus Shelters) =~~~ -~ C003695 1,640
Total . LT 8 794,903

See accompanylng notes to schedule of state transportatlon assmtance expended
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CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK
e —————

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF STATE TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED
June30,2014

'NOTE A - GENERAL
The above Schedule of State Transportation Assistance Expended of the City of Watertown, New

York, presents the activity of all major ﬁnancml ass1stance programs prov1ded by the New York
State Department of Transportatxon ‘ : o E

NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

- The above Schedule of State Transportanon Assistance Expended is presented usmg the accrual _
- basis of accountmg S R . : .
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: : CITY OF WATERTOWN, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS F OR STATE e
TRANSPORTATION ASSISTANCE EXPENDED o C o
June 30 2014

‘Summary of Audit Results

- Internal control over state transportation assistance expended:

‘Material weaknesses identified '+~ Nonereported
-Significant deficiencies identified that arenot .~ - -
considered to be material weaknesses . -+ Nonereported -

o _ Type of auditor's report 1ssued on comphance for

Program tested o R -_3:. S Umr_l_od_iﬁed
'SummaryofAudit_Finglings: S Na
Identification of State Transportatlon Ass1stance o e |

' Programs tested R .o 7w Consolidated Local
: ' L S E Street & Highway

- Improvement Program
~ Capital Reimbursement-
CHIPS Contract# 732059
_Compliance Findings and Questioned Costs |

No matters were reported.
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